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PLANS

2 Viking Offshore and Marine Limited

Strengthening foundation 
and entering mainstream

Our strategy to strengthen our core business capability and 

enhance our value proposition is helping us to meet the changing 

and challenging demands of our customers. Through this strategy, 

we are creating growth by adding and retaining customers;  

and enabling this growth through broadening our offering,  

expanding our geographical reach and moving towards the 

mainstream of offshore and marine industry. We are reshaping 

our customers’ experience and offering a suite of products and 

solutions that makes us the preferred choice for offshore and 

marine customers globally.

DEFINING SUCCESS 
IN THE OFFSHORE & 

MARINE INDUSTRY
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OUR
BUSINESS

Viking Offshore and Marine is a SGX-listed company based in 

Singapore with presence in the Asian region and customers all 

over the world. Further complementing our regional presence, we 

have a network of service agents spanning the globe. Through its 

wholly owned subsidiaries, Viking provides offshore and marine 

system solutions to yards, vessels owners and oil majors around 

the world. The strength of our products and solutions lies in our 

robust engineering designs, superior project delivery and many 

track records over the years. Our system capability spans across:

We optimise solutions by 
connecting offshore and 
marine specialists

ENABLING 
PERFORMANCE 
IN THE HIGH SEAS

systems (HVACR)

In 2013, we made a strategic move into the mainstream offshore 

and marine industry by acquiring offshore and marine assets.
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TRANSFORMATION
Complete disposal of non-core 

business and assets

Strengthen and enlarge core competencies

Enter mainstream by joint-venture to 

acquire new-build offshore rig asset

SUCCESSFUL 
PROJECT DELIVERY

First-ever turnkey HVACR systems on fixed  

platform for international oil majors

Largest own-designed UK HSE NORSOK- 

equivalent HVACR systems for 500-men semi-

submersible

First-ever series of build-to-order winch systems 

for OSV newbuild

Utilise own design to build explosion-proof HVACR 

systems

ACQUIRING 
NEW ORDERS

Largest total orders across all systems secured 

in a year

Highest order book carried forward to new year

Largest single order of HVACR systems in history

First-ever secured order for integrated vessel 

management systems

First-ever secured telecommunication systems 

order on a drillship

HVACR systems for 2 high-specification drilling 

semi-submersible

ACQUIRING ASSETS
Broke ground for Viking Innovation Centre, 

doubling built-up real estate space

Joint-venture to acquire new-build offshore 

jack-up rig asset

SHAREHOLDING
GROWTH

Successful rights issue 1.9 times  

over-subscribed

Placement to new strategic substantial

investor

Market capitalisation of $120 million 

almost doubled in 12 months
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Revenue (from continuing 
operations) grew to 

$70.6 million

%16
Net Assets increased to 

$93.2 million

Cash and Equivalents 
increased to $19 million

Net Asset Value Per Share

Order book backlog more 
than doubled

$85M

Earnings Per Share (from 
continuing operations) 

improved to 0.32  cents. 

After Tax Net Profit grew to 
$2.2 million

Market Capitalisation  
almost doubled

New Orders grew 86%
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I) EXTENDING CAPABILITIES AND MOVING UP VALUE CHAIN

We expand our solution value chain by adding more 

capabilities to meet customer requirements and differentiate 

our value through strategic partnerships with leading solution 

providers. We extended our solution application beyond 

vessels and rigs onto drillships, fixed platforms, and other 

mobile offshore units.

Driving further creativity, we began constructing the Viking 

Innovation Centre, an enterprise hub at our Kian Teck Road 

facility that will cluster emerging O&M companies. This will 

potentially further expand our solution capabilities, and 

improve our usage of real estate.

II) EXPANDING MARKETS AND CUSTOMER BASE

The extension of our capabilities invariably opens up more 

market opportunities. We increased interactions and 

relationships with customers beyond the traditional yards 

and vessel owners to the international oil 

majors; and from O&M to oil and gas, and 

naval defence. Our increased overseas 

presence, coupled with integrated 

customer coverage, has widened and 

deepened our customer base and enlarged 

our footprint as an international player.

III) NEW BUSINESS PILLAR IN MAINSTREAM O&M ASSETS

Our foray into mainstream O&M asset ownership and the 

planned subsequent entry into chartering business is cause 

for great excitement. We entered into strategic partnerships 

with the founders of Labroy Marine to acquire and co-own 

two drilling jack-up rigs which are designed for depth up to 

375 feet. The two rigs are currently under construction and 

our plan is to charter these assets when they are completed 

sometime in the fourth quarter of 2015.

We will continue to seek out opportunities to acquire more 

earnings accretive O&M assets to build up our fleet and 

develop a portfolio of long term recurring revenue.

Dear Shareholders,

2013 was an exciting and significant year for the Group. We 

grew revenues, profits and order book; we shifted our offshore 

and marine (“O&M”) service offerings to higher gear through 

participating in the acquisition of a newbuild jack-up rig – and 

added a second rig in early 2014 – as a prelude to building a 

portfolio of O&M assets for recurring revenue.

The seeds of this strategic shift were first sown in 2010 when 

we began building a suite of O&M services. We extended 

our capabilities and expanded the market reach of our core 

businesses, setting the stage for the next transformation to move 

into mainstream asset ownership and chartering services.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE IN FY2013

We completed the disposal of our non-core legacy businesses. 

This allowed us to sharpen our focus and align 

resources to accelerate growth in the O&M sector 

so as to enhance value to our shareholders. 

The Group’s Revenue and Net Profits from 

continuing operations grew 22% and 227% 

in FY2013, respectively. During the year we 

secured $108 million of new orders, 86% higher 

than in FY2012. Correspondingly, the Order Book at the end of 

2013 is $85 million, double that a year ago. Earnings Per Share 

grew 191% to 0.32 cents per share.

Our balance sheet is healthy with Net Assets of $93 million, a 

Cash and Equivalents position of $19 million, and a low gearing 

of 0.09 times.

OUR STRATEGY YIELDING RESULTS

Our future performance cannot be left to chance; it can only be 

achieved by a clear, actionable and pertinent strategic focus. 

Our strategy for 2013 is a three-pronged thrust which combines 

extending our suite of capabilities, expanding our market reach and 

widening our customer base with more significantly, developing a 

new pillar of growth from mainstream offshore assets.

We grew revenues, profits and order book; 
elevated our value by acquiring offshore 
assets to build new growth pillar

We draw optimism from 
the results of our executed 
strategy and will continue 
to stay on this growth 
course going forward
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REWARD STRONG SHAREHOLDER SUPPORT

Our market capitalisation crossed $120 million at the end of 2013, 

almost doubling that of a year earlier. On the shareholding front, 

we raised new capital from a rights issue that was subscribed. 

We also did a share placement which brought in a new strategic 

substantial shareholder.

We appreciate our shareholders’ confidence in our business and 

strategic directions. In view of the favourable financial performance 

and to reward our shareholders for their unwavering support, we 

have declared a first and final dividend of 0.15 cent per share – 

50% more than the previous year. This marks our fifth consecutive 

year of dividend payment; a record we can be proud of.

OUTLOOK

We draw optimism from the results of our executed strategy and 

will continue to stay on this growth course going forward. We have 

begun to take the first step to build our new business pillar which 

marks our dramatic entry into the mainstream O&M sector. I am 

confident that this strategy will not only raise our profile but also 

enhance shareholder value.

While having started 2014 with a much stronger order book and 

participation in two rigs, we remain vigilant about the competitive 

environment and the need to maintain internal efficiencies, even 

as we look out for fresh opportunities in the O&M sector.

APPRECIATION

We thank our colleagues, customers, partners, investors, 

shareholders, and our suppliers, for their continued support; and 

together with the resolute action of our committed management 

team, we can all look forward to a brighter future for Viking.

Andy Lim

Chairman

22%Revenue

>$120MMarket
Capitalisation

Net Profits 227%
Grew

Up
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2013

Enter Mainstream  
for Growth

Extend our solution capabilities

Expand our market reach &  

customer base

Enter mainstream O&M market via 

asset acquisition

2011

Aggregate businesses to improve  

value chain

Integrate go-to-market sales and  

coverage

Optimise infrastructure

Consolidate real estate for operations 

Integrate
for Efficiency

2010

Acquire O&M businesses

Viking Airtech

Promoter Hydraulics

Marshal Systems

Dispose non-core assets & businesses

Bolt-On for  
Transformation

2012

Develop and promote Viking overseas

Build on-ground presence

Enter emerging markets

Internationalise 
for Growth
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TRANSFORM BUSINESS
ACCELERATE GROWTH
ENHANCE VALUE

2014

Scale-Up Portfolio
for Sustainability

Build long-term sustainability

Grow fleet of O&M assets

Acquire earnings-accretive assets
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REVENUE ($MILLION)

NET ASSETS ($MILLION) CASH AND EQUIVALENTS ($MILLION)

NET PROFIT AFTER TAX ($MILLION)

10.4

5.4

2.2

0.7

2010

2010

2011

2011

2012

2012

2013

2010 2011 2012 2013
2013

85

80 80

93

69

84

58

71

2010 2011 2012 2013

13.1

8.8

11.6

19.0
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2010 2011 2012 2013

Revenue 68.5 84.0 58.0 70.6

Gross Profit 20.3 21.2 17.0 21.5

Gross Margin 30% 25% 29% 30%

Net Profit After Tax 10.4 5.4 0.7 2.2

After-Tax Profit Margin 15% 6% 1% 3%

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE ($MILLION)

2010 2011 2012 2013

Total Assets 155.1 118.1 112.5 123.0

Total Liabilities 70.3 38.2 32.5 29.8

Shareholder’s Equity 84.8 79.9 80.0 93.2

Net Current Assets 16.0 35.0 36.8 49.2

Cash & Cash Equivalents 13.1 8.8 11.6 19.0

FINANCIAL POSITION ($MILLION)

2010 2011 2012 2013

Opening Cash Balance 7.1 13.1 8.8 11.6

Net Cash Flow From Operations 2.7 4.5 (0.4) (1.2)

Net Cash Flow From Investing (16.7) (6.2) 7.6 (0.5)

Net Cash Flow From Financing 20.0 (2.6) (4.4) 9.1

Ending Cash Balance 13.1 8.8 11.6 19.0

CASH FLOW ($MILLION)
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STRENGTHEN FOUNDATION
ENTER MAINSTREAM



Expand
Markets

Enter
Mainstream
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Our clear, action-based and 
pertinent strategy allows 
us to capitalise on industry 
growth dynamics and build 
a sustainable future
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EXTEND
CAPABILITIES

EXPAND
MARKETS

ENTER
MAINSTREAM

Alliance & partnership

Solution bundling

Geographical expansion

Strategic partnership

Market Initiatives 

Organisation Initiatives

Integrated coverage

Cross-selling

Competence hubbing

On-ground presence

Asset ownership

Fund raising

Demand and growth

Emerging markets

Growing visibility

Cost
containment

Resource
constraints

Margin
pressure

Leveraging assets
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To meet the offshore and marine industry’s 

increasing solution demands, we recognised 

that we had to expand our suite of offerings 

and populate our solutions across varied and 

additional platforms. Only by doing so can we 

retain and add customers, and create new 

business segments. In meeting these objectives, 

we strive to extend our capabilities.
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Extending our capability 
goes beyond widening 
our suite of products and 
services; enabling our 
application on different 
platforms, and delivering 
on higher standards and 
requirements.
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WIDENING OUR SOLUTION VALUE CHAIN 

In seeking to add complementary solutions to widen our value 

proposition we secured a partnership agreement with Marioff  

Hi-Fog, an internationally renowned name in high-pressure water-mist 

technology fire-fighting systems for offshore and marine industry. 

Additionally, we collaborate with product principals involved in valve 

remote control system, offshore cargo-carrying units, and deck 

machineries peripherals.

EXPAND APPLICATION PLATFORMS 

We have traditionally been strong in the mobile platforms of vessels 

and offshore rigs. In 2013, we also successfully delivered our 

systems on fixed platform for oil majors, secured orders on drillship 

and in defence arena – a growing testament of our capabilities and a 

prelude to opening up new markets.

BUILD-OUR-OWN CAPABILITY

Viking Airtech successfully delivered an own-designed and built 

explosion proof HVACR system in addition to our own chiller units. 

Promoter Hydraulics has successfully added capability to perform 

build-to-specifications winch systems for customers and secured a 

series of such orders from various yards.

RAISING OUR STANDARDS

In 2013 Viking Airtech designed, built and delivered NORSOK-

equivalent standard explosion-proof units that meet harsh and 

hazardous environments. On top of the exacting requirements, we 

also successfully delivered the largest own-designed HVACR systems 

for a 500-man semi-submersible.

VIKING INNOVATION CENTRE

We broke ground in 2013 commencing the construction of a 

130,000-square-feet new building; effectively doubling our current 

built-up in the same premises. In addition to the income opportunity, 

the centre will allow us to incubate and uncover start-ups in the 

offshore and marine sector which could be game-changers for the 

industry.
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The offshore and marine industry is clearly a 

global one in which vessel owners, shipyards, 

operators, and solution providers operate across 

international boundaries. Adjusting our offerings 

and solutions appropriately, we can replicate our 

services and solutions across different platforms 

and geographies. With this in mind, we 

accelerated our efforts to capitalise on growth of 

overseas markets and emerging players.  

To increase the size of our business and to 

enlarge our customer base; we took action to 

expand our markets.
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ACQUIRING NEW CUSTOMERS

Beyond shipyards and vessel owners, we 

have also started working with oil majors 

such as Shell and Total. This not only opens 

up new relationships with the oil majors but 

also provides us opportunities to employ 

our systems on additional applications. 

Beyond offshore rigs and vessels, we 

have also secured orders for solutions 

to be installed on drillships and defence-

related marine vessels, a completely new 

segment. Beyond these successes we are 

also working with new yards, especially in 

China and the overseas markets.

GROWTH IN DOMESTIC MARKET

We continue to grow in Singapore with 

respect to new orders secured. A significant 

order, the largest contract size to-date, was 

secured by Viking Airtech for over $21 

million with ST Marine, with systems that 

are not deployed in the traditional oil and 

gas sector. This specific win is a major 

achievement for Viking and allows the 

Group to capitalise on the prominence of 

Singapore’s offshore and marine industry 

with new orders secured growing 124% and 

order book growing 99% year-on-year.

VIBRANT OVERSEAS MARKET

As we continue to expand our geographical 

footprint, our overseas orders have 

increased 58% compared to a year earlier 

and order book at the end of the year grew 

108%. While the regional markets shows 

signs of promise, our biggest growth came 

from China.

GROWING CHINA PROMINENCE

In addition to beefing up resources in 

existing operations in China, we built on-

ground presence in Nantong to capitalise 

on emerging offshore activities there. Our 

fabrication plant facility in Yantai is now a 

fully equipped designated manufacturing 

hub for all of Viking Airtech systems to 

meet orders for customers around the 

world. Underscoring the success of our 

efforts, the China market is now the largest 

overseas market and in year 2013 with a 

127% increase in orders and an order book 

almost two-and-a-half times higher than 

a year ago. During the year we also won 

$10 million for HVACR systems, the single 

largest contract out of China so far.

Growing our business 
portfolio requires us to 
geographically expand our 
reach to new customers, 
deepen relationships with 
existing ones, and – in 
doing so – enlarge our  
market share.
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NEW ORDERS SECURED FOR THE YEAR ($MILLION)

2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 20122013

Local Overseas Viking

Airtech

Marshal

Systems

Promoter

Hydraulics

Total

2013 2013 2013 2013 2013

25

52

108

26

65

19
25

13
18

33

5856

FY 2012 FY 2013

31

31

11
17

16
22

Singapore

Singapore

Others
Others

China
China

GEOGRAPHICAL REVENUE CONTRIBUTION ($MILLION)
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In addition to strengthening our core competence 

and growing our existing businesses of providing 

system solutions, we are also preparing for 

the future. We are building a new business 

portfolio of sustainable, predictable and high-

margin earnings stream. Encouraged by the 

continued growth and demand for offshore and 

marine assets, we gravitate closer towards 

the mainstream industry. Acquiring in-demand 

offshore and marine assets and offering 

chartering services will drive our core strategy as 

we seek to enter the mainstream.
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We have raised our entire business 

proposition by moving into the mainstream 

of the industry. We entered into a strategic 

partnership with the founders of Labroy 

Marine to acquire new-build offshore rigs in 

a manner which lowers cost and mitigates 

risk, importing the necessary expertise to 

ensure success.

Our joint-venture partners are renowned 

veterans with deep industry experience, 

which ensures that we have steady hands 

as we navigate our entry into the industry 

mainstream. The business structure allows 

us to commit lesser funding for a venture 

of high value with potentially attractive 

returns.

In November 2013, we agreed to take a 30% 

shareholding in Smart Earl Investment Pte 

Ltd, a special-purpose vehicle controlled 

by Mr Chan Kwan Bian (Labroy Marine  

co-founder). In March 2014, we extended  

our partnership with Mr Chan by an  

investment of similar size and stake in Quick  

Booms Investments Ltd. Through these 

investments, we will be able to co-own a 

pair of CJ46-X100-D GustoMSC cantilever 

jack-up rigs. These rigs are currently being 

built at a established yard and are expected 

to be completed in fourth-quarter of 2015. 

We will explore charter opportunities 

before these rigs are completed.

The above rig investments, via our wholly 

owned Viking Asset Management Pte Ltd, 

constitute our business foray into owning 

and chartering offshore and marine assets.

Investing for the future 
and building a new pillar 
of growth; moving into 
industry mainstream 
by acquiring offshore 
and marine assets and 
providing charter services.
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Cantilever jack-up drilling rig  
CJ46-X100-D GustoMSC
Able to operate in water depth up to 375 feet and 

accommodate 120 men
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Continuing what we started in 2013, we are 
actively looking to acquire more earnings 
accretive O&M assets of various platforms, 
rigs and vessels to build up our fleet and 
develop long term recurring revenue.

Despite the global macro-economic 

uncertainties this year, the offshore and 

marine (“O&M”) sector continues to be 

positive, as the oil and gas sector to which it 

is dependent on has remained healthy. The 

uptrend is accelerating delivery schedules 

and putting a squeeze on resource 

availability, while margin pressures continue 

to prevail. Against this backdrop, the Group 

continues to evolve, adapt and transform to 

capitalise on the industry dynamics.

EXTENDING OUR CAPABILITIES

While we continuously expand our suite of 

O&M capabilities to plug solution gaps and 

increase value to customers, we needed to 

approach it the smart way. We recognised 

the need to add capability without the need 

to own the solution or the business and, 

therefore, embarked on forging strategic 

partnerships and collaborations with 

leading O&M product principals that revolve 

around our three business pillars.

We collaborated and added complementary 

solutions in water-mist technology fire-

fighting solution, remote control valve 

systems, deck machinery peripherals and 

cargo handling equipment. The fire-fighting 

solution is a natural extension to our 

existing fire and gas detection systems. 

Likewise, deck machinery peripherals and 

cargo handling equipment complement well 

with our winch systems on the topside. 

Leveraging our power pack hydraulic 

technology, we harnessed our technical 

know-how and collaborated with a remote 

valve control systems technology owner. 

These additional offerings extend our 

differentiation, increase competitiveness 

and will help to increase revenue going 

forward. 

While the above demonstrates an external 

view of our go-to-market model, internally 

we moulded our sales coverage along the 

same principles to extend our capability 

and reach to our customers. To maintain 

cost efficiency and improve productivity, 

we adopted an integrated coverage model 

whereby our frontline staff now have the 

ability to cross-sell all our product offerings, 

including those of our partners. This 

approach has allowed us to contain our 

cost, improve utilisation of our resources, 

and more importantly, strengthen our 

customer relationship. As a case in point, 

the Promoter Hydraulics business grew 

four-fold in China without any resource on-

ground, by leveraging the coverage of Viking 

Airtech resources in China.

We were successful in winning both 

the HVACR and the winch systems in 

an integrated bid for both our product 

applications on a single 500-man 

accommodation semi-submersible. We 

had also, for the first time, secured all 

our three business solutions on a jack-up 

rig platform. These are just some of the 

examples of our integrated coverage model 

extending our capability and expanding our 

customer relationship and yielding results.
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GEOGRAPHICAL EXPANSION DRIVES MARKET GROWTH

In 2012, we drove overseas expansion by increasing on-ground 

presence across key markets. In 2013, we further intensified 

our internationalisation initiative, expanding our coverage to 

new customers and deepening our relationships with newer and 

established customers.

Most of these resources were deployed into our China market and 

the results were evident as China grew 127% year-on-year in new 

orders and is now the largest overseas market and fast closing 

the gap to our local portfolio size. In addition to our coverage 

enhancement, we also shored up our manufacturing capability in 

our fabrication plant in Yantai, China. This plant is now the hub of 

all our HVACR manufacturing operations, capable of supplying to 

all our customers and meeting European manufacturing standards.

In Indonesia, we successfully delivered our HVACR systems onto 

fixed platform for the international oil majors. This in itself is a 

major milestone as we are able to meet the stringent requirement 

of international oil majors. As a relative 

new entrant to a market brimming with 

opportunities, it will pave the way for more 

orders in the years to come.

Orders from overseas customers accounted 

for half of the total orders in 2013. While 

China represents a significant overseas 

market for us, accounting for more than 60% 

of the overseas orders, we are also making 

inroads in the other geographies. In particular, 

Malaysia and Middle-East – two oil rich regions with good growth 

prospects – also showed reasonable contribution in new orders in 

2013. 

NEW CUSTOMERS CONTINUED TO DRIVE LOCAL MARKET 

IMPORTANCE

Despite the growth experiences overseas, Singapore continues 

to be an important market for Viking. In 2013, new orders from 

local customers grew 123% year-on-year and accounted for half of 

the total new orders secured. Albeit, this growth could be skewed 

by the single-largest ever contract from ST Marine of more than 

$21 million, the growth rate for Singapore excluding this order is 

a respectable 39%. The significance of the ST Marine contract 

extends beyond its size; it is a win in a relatively new customer in a non-

oil and gas arena and adds a new business initiative of providing Integrated 

Logistic Support system extending for many years into the future.

Besides ST Marine, 2013 we also added customers in the other 

major yards of Jurong Shipyard and Keppel Singmarine. Coupled 

with our strong presence in Keppel FELS, we have now established 

relationships with all the major yards in Singapore.

EVOLVING BUSINESS MODEL FOR GROWTH

Promoter Hydraulics’ orders increased to $18.0 million in FY2013 

from $13.0 million a year earlier as it extended its capabilities 

beyond vessel platforms to more sophisticated offshore rigs. 

This follows the successful transformation from a pure stock-

and-sell business model up-streamed to design and build-to-order 

specification winch systems and deck machinery player. All of the 

winch orders from the Chinese yards are for high-specification 

build-to-order systems, while majority of the other orders involves 

design customisation and no longer relies on ready-made stock 

items of the past. For the first time, Promoter also secured orders 

to build winch systems for offshore rigs of even higher specification 

and exacting requirements.

Promoter Hydraulics’ business model change emulates that of 

Viking Airtech and Marshal Systems in developing recurring order 

book and more sustained customer relationships with greater 

value-add. Taking this concept of building more sustainable and 

longer-term revenue streams, we took the empty plot of 25,000 

sq ft land within the current Kian Teck facility 

and constructed a building with 130,000 

sq ft of built-up area which will generate a 

good yield of rental stream. Not only are we 

better utilising the existing land asset, we 

are also increasing our existing asset size 

considerably.  

Construction of the Viking Innovation Centre 

(“VIC”) began in April 2013. This enterprise 

hub will offer workshop space to companies 

providing specialised O&M products and services. The centre will 

combine research and development, collaboration, innovation, 

technology test-bedding and incubation of new concepts including 

clustering companies into product groups to prepare them for the 

market. Expected to be operational in September 2014, VIC will 

begin to recognise lease rental in FY2014.  

NEW BUSINESS PILLAR IN MAINSTREAM RIGS, OFFSHORE 

PLATFORMS & VESSELS

Faced with margin and resource pressures in our existing system 

solution business, we strategised to move up the value chain and 

build a sustainable, predictable and higher-margin revenue stream. 

The evolution of this strategy led Viking to enter into mainstream 

offshore assets ownership and provision of charter services. 

In November 2013, we executed this strategy via a strategic 

partnership with the founders of Labroy Marine to acquire a stake 

in the first of two drilling jack-up rigs valued at US$180-million each. 

Viking took a 30%-stake in Smart Earl Investment Pte Ltd, an 

investment vehicle belonging to Labroy marine co-founder Mr Chan 

Kwan Bian, for US$5.4 million to be able to jointly own the jack-up 

Excluding non-core 
businesses disposed 
during the year, the Group 
recorded $70.6 million 
revenue in FY2013, a 
22%-increase from $57.9 
million in FY2012
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rig. In March 2014, we participated in the second rig on similar 

terms by investing in another investment vehicle, Quick Booms 

Investments Limited. Both rigs are expected to be completed and 

available for service in the fourth quarter of 2015.

In addition, Singaporean O&M veteran and the other Labroy Marine 

founder Mr Tan Boy Tee subscribed to 40 million new Viking 

shares in November 2013. This was followed in March 2014 by 

a subscription of another 40 million shares, through a private 

placement. His international reputation, track record, corporate 

experience and strategic connections, particularly in the O&M 

industry, will help Viking capture significant new opportunities. 

The monies raised through these placements, together with the 

proceeds raised earlier in April 2013 from the rights issue, will be 

used to fund the acquisition of the two rigs.

  

Beyond the entry into the mainstream O&M sector, the synergies of 

our strategy are clear – Viking’s three core products and services 

will be deployed onto the rig. It also creates the strong likelihood 

for Viking to participate in similarly configured rigs built in the same 

yard in the future.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE IN 2013 

Excluding non-core businesses disposed during the year, the Group 

recorded $70.6 million revenue in FY2013, a 22%-increase from 

$58.0 million in FY2012, mainly from better order book backlog as 

well as higher orders secured during the year. 

Despite the competitive pressures, the gross profit margin 

for FY2013 was maintained as we leveraged on lower-cost 

manufacturing overseas. Factors affecting the bottom-line included 

the decrease in other income for the current year, mainly due to the 

one-off gain of $3.9 million from the sale of quoted equities made 

in the prior year.

Total expenses of $23.7 million for FY2013 are comparable 

with that recorded in the previous year. The higher marketing 

and distribution expenses is attributable to the higher overseas 

freighting charges as a result of a higher mix of overseas order 

fulfilment, in line with our market expansion. 

The net profit after tax from continuing operations of $2.2 million 

grew 227% year-on-year – driven primarily by higher revenue and 

the corresponding profits. Additionally, the current year tax liability 

is more than offset by a write-back of prior year tax provision which 

is no longer required.

Net assets for the Group of $93.2 million as at 31 December 2013 

are higher compared to that as at 31 December 2012, largely due 

to the cash proceeds from the rights issue exercise of $9.2 million 

as well as a private placement made to a strategic investor for 

$3.1 million.

GOING FORWARD IN 2014

At the end of 2013, the order book stood at $85 million, more 

than doubled from $42 million a year ago, resulting from a general 

increase across all our subsidiaries. Out of the total order book, 

$55.0 million or 65% was contributed from Viking Airtech, 27% from 

Marshal Systems, and the remaining 8% from Promoter Hydraulics. 

However, continued competition amidst a challenging market 

condition and tight resource situation has intensified pressure 

on margins. The Group is striving for higher sales and improving 

procurement productivity. Furthermore, the continued shift in 

production capacity to lower-cost countries is expected to yield 

cost savings and alleviate a tight resource situation while keeping 

in mind our strategic focus.

We will continue to execute and widen the strategies we developed 

in 2013 which yielded good results. Extending our capabilities 

further is feasible as we have only scraped the peak of an iceberg 

given the large number of solutions required along the vast value 

chain. As we expand our reach beyond Asia, we strive to increase 

market share with existing and newly acquired customers.

Continuing what we started in 2013, for the new business pillar, 

we are actively looking to acquire more earnings accretive O&M 

assets of various platforms, rigs and vessels to build up our fleet 

and develop long term recurring revenue. 

APPRECIATION

With a strong order book, the success of our strategies executed 

and foray into the new business of asset ownership and chartering 

business, we are optimistic and encouraged with our business 

direction in the years to come.

I wish to thank our employees, business partners and all who 

have made this challenging journey with us. I look forward to your 

continuing support and partnership to make 2014 a better year.

Ong Choo Guan

Chief Executive Officer
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BUSINESS PROFILE
Many of the regions’ biggest shipyards and vessel owners prefer Viking Airtech because 

we deliver reliable, comprehensive and specialised HVACR solutions. Our turnkey 

service capabilities include customised design, engineering, manufacturing, installation, 

supervision, testing and commissioning of HVACR systems for the global offshore and 

marine industry.

A strong global sales and service network across five continents enables us to respond 

to service queries promptly anywhere in the world and to provide high quality service 

and support. Systems and equipment are designed, engineered and built in-house in 

fabrication plant.

Employs cutting-edge technology in areas of energy-efficient, eco-friendly, explosion proof 

and ruggedised systems. Comprehensive range of solutions to meet varied customer 

requirements – air to water-cooled, direct expansion to chill water systems, conventional 

packaged unit to centralised mega chilled water systems.

Designed and built for customers who work under extreme ambient temperatures. 

Capable of meeting NORSOK and European standards; Middle-Eastern, Russian and 

Asian ambient conditions. Det Norske Veritas (DNV) certified quality management system 

for over 10 years.

ACCREDITATION

Management System

2013 HIGHLIGHTS

worth more than $21 million.

submersible on NORSOK equivalent requirements worth more than $10 million.

Million65$

146%
YTY Growth

%60
Contribution to Group

Order
Secured



35Annual Report 2013

The turnkey specialists in Heating, 
Ventilation, Air-Conditioning and  
Refrigeration systems
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BUSINESS PROFILE
Marshal is a leading systems integrator preferred by internationally-renowned companies 

in the offshore and marine industry. Customers are assured that their assets are 

protected when equipped with systems integrated by Marshal’s specialists. Superior 

systems integration capabilities combined with specialised equipment and systems by 

leading manufacturers is the reason why Marshal is preferred by leading offshore and 

marine companies globally.

Every Marshal Systems’ solution is designed, engineered and built using tested and 

proven components from globally-renowned brands. Wide connectivity and interoperability 

with other subsystems allows for efficient and centralised command and control. The 

efficient and effective use of mechanical, electrical and electronics systems designed to 

maximise value, made with multiple redundancies mechanism to minimise risk of single 

point of failure.

ACCREDITATION

Management System.

2013 HIGHLIGHTS

Million25$

31%
YTY Growth

%23
Contribution to Group

Order
Secured
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Leading system integrator for 
Fire and Gas Detection systems, 
Telecommunication systems, and 
Control and Instrumentation systems
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BUSINESS PROFILE
Internationally-renowned vessel owners, marine project contractors and integrators trust 

Promoter as we continuously deliver on our promise of speeding up your offshore and 

marine projects. Due to our depth of product availability, we have the capability to efficiently 

design and engineer customised systems along with fabricating and assembling them 

into finished products.

Promoter offers flexibility and affordability with our range of services that include 

commissioning, turnkey projects, load testing, maintenance and procurement 

management. Our promise to customers globally is to provide customised deck machinery 

to speed up their offshore and marine projects. We also provide build-to-order winches 

and deck machineries.

We are the largest supplier of hydraulic winches and power packs in S.E. Asia. Together 

with our air and electric winches, we offer a comprehensive suite of products for this 

product category. Every winch manufactured incorporates technologies from various 

reputable European suppliers. We pride ourselves as a leading provider with the widest 

range of load capacity capability equipment

configuration.

ACCREDITATION

Management System

2013 HIGHLIGHTS

added to ready-made design stockist model.

500-man semi-submersible offshore accommodation.

Million18$

44%
YTY Growth

%17
Contribution to Group

Order
Secured
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Supplier of large range of types and 
capacity, ready-built and designed-built 
winches system and deck machineries
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Top left to right: Lin Wei Daniel, Lee Suan Hiang, Lien Kait Long, Tan Wee Peng Kelvin

Bottom left to right: Bo Johansson, Ong Choo Guan, Andy Lim
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ANDY LIM, 56

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr Lim was appointed Chairman and Executive Director of the Company 

on 15 June 2009. As the founder and Chairman of private equity firm 

Tembusu Partners Pte Ltd, he is currently the Executive Director of 

Associated Leisure International and Chairman of MoneyWorld Group 

of Companies. His other board appointments include Chairman of 

Overseas Experts Council (Singapore branch) of Peking University’s 

China Centre for Strategic Studies, President of Enterprise 50 

Association and a member of the Home Affairs Uniformed Service 

Invest Board of Trustee. His past board appointments include 

Chairman of Alpha Singapore and Council Member of the National 

Council for Anti-Drug Abuse. In September 2004, Mr Lim was 

appointed Honorary Consul to the Republic of Lithuania. Mr Lim 

holds an Engineering degree (First Class Honours) from Cambridge 

University and a Masters in Business Administration from University 

of California at Los Angeles (UCLA).

ONG CHOO GUAN, 62

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mr Ong was appointed Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 15 

January 2010, and appointed Executive Director on 16 April 2010. With 

more than 30 years of management experience in the offshore and 

marine industry, Mr Ong has been instrumental in driving the growth 

of Viking Airtech Pte Ltd since its incorporation in 1994 as part of 

Viking Engineering Group. Since his appointment as Executive Director 

of Viking Airtech in 2003, he has turned the business around and 

brought Viking Airtech to new heights as a leading HVACR solutions 

provider to shipyards and vessel owners in the region. Prior to joining 

Viking Engineering Group in 1980 where he was General Manager,  

Mr Ong was with Jurong Shipyard as the Overall-in-charge Engineer for 

mechanical works onboard the vessels. He is a Mechanical Engineer 

by profession and received various training in Finance and Accounting, 

and Marketing Management.

LIN WEI DANIEL, 30

Executive Director

Mr Lin was appointed Non-Executive Director of the Board on 13 May 

2011, and was redesignated Executive Director on 1 May 2012. He is 

the Chief Executive Officer of the company’s wholly-owned subsidiary 

Viking Asset Management Pte Ltd and also responsible for the 

company’s investment arm, Viking Capital Pte Ltd. Prior to this, Mr Lin 

was an Executive Director of Boutique Mergers & Acquisitions Advisory 

Firm Blue Ocean Capital Partners, providing bespoke corporate finance 

advice to high net worth individuals. Mr Lin also sits on the boards of 

Singapore-listed company Nico Steel Holdings Ltd and Ann Aik Limited 

as a Non-Executive Director. Mr Lin is also a member of the Finance 

Committee with the Singapore Institute of Directors. He graduated 

with an Honours Degree in Law in 2007 from Bristol University, United 

Kingdom. Mr Lin is the son of Mr Andy Lim, a substantial shareholder 

and Executive Director of the Company.

LEE SUAN HIANG, 63

Lead Independent Director

Mr Lee was appointed Independent Director of the Company on 16 

April 2010. He is the Chief Executive of the Real Estate Developers’ 

Association of Singapore. A Colombo Plan Scholar in Industrial 

Design (Engineering), he had a varied career in public service as 

Deputy Managing Director of the Economic Development Board and 

Chief Executive of SPRING Singapore, National Productivity Board, 

Singapore Institute of Standards and Industrial Research and 

National Arts Council. He was also the Chairman of PSB Corporation, 

Deputy Chairman of the International Federation of Arts Councils and 

Cultural Agencies and Council Member of the International Standards 

Organisation. He is the current President of the EDB Society and a 

Fellow of the UK Chartered Management Institute, Chartered Institute 

of Marketing, and World Academy for Productivity Science. Mr Lee was 

awarded the Public Administration (Gold) Medal in 1998, World SME 

Association Award in 2001, Japan External Trade Organisation Award 

in 2002 and Chevalier de l’Ordre des Arts et Lettres from France in 

2010.

LIEN KAIT LONG, 65

Independent Director

Mr Lien was appointed Non-Executive Director of the Company on 26 

May 2008. He was redesignated Independent Director on 4 May 2009. 

Mr Lien has extensive experience in accounting and finance, corporate 

management and business investment. He has held a number of 

senior management positions as well as executive directorships in 

various public and private corporations in Singapore, Hong Kong and 

China. He currently serves as an Independent Director on the boards 

of several Singapore and Chinese companies listed on the Singapore 

Exchange. The listed companies that he has present and prior 

experience in are from diverse industries including manufacturing, 

telecommunications, renewable energy, oil & gas, consumer goods, 

textile and flexible packaging. Mr Lien holds a Bachelor of Commerce 
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degree from Nanyang University and is a fellow member of the CPA 

Australia and the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants.

TAN WEE PENG KELVIN, 49

Independent Director

Mr Tan was appointed Independent Director of the Company on 25 

June 2009. He is currently the Managing Director of GBE Holdings Pte 

Ltd. He has more than 20 years of professional experience including 

senior management positions at AETOS Security Management, PSA 

International, and Temasek Holdings, the last being the Managing 

Director of its Private Equity Funds Investment Unit. He was a 

consultant advising companies investing in China, and also served 

with the Singapore Police Force. A Local Merit Scholar (Police Service), 

Mr Tan holds a Bachelor in Accountancy (First Class Honours) and 

a Master in Business Administration from the National University 

of Singapore. He also attended the Programme for Management 

Development at Harvard Business School. Mr Tan currently holds 

directorship appointments with several other private and public-listed 

companies.

BO JOHANSSON, 73

Advisor to Chairman

Please see page 45
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OUR BUSINESS
ADVISORS

BO JOHANSSON, 73

Advisor to Chairman

Mr Johansson was appointed Advisor to Chairman of the Company 

on 16 April 2010. He is currently Managing Director of Viking 

Engineering Pte Ltd and was Chairman of Viking Airtech Pte Ltd 

since its incorporation until 2009. As a Certified Turbine and Gears 

Engineer Stal-Laval Turbin AB (now Siemens Sweden AB) since 1969, 

Mr Johansson has extensive experience as a Specialist Engineer on 

main propulsion steam turbines, gears and control systems for various 

ship-owners, including Golar Management LNG, Shell, BP, British Gas, 

ExxonMobil, Chevron Shipping USA, Tanker Pacific, Bergesen Norway, 

Abu Dhabi Gas, Qatargas, MOL Japan, Sovcomflot Russia and others. 

He also guided Viking Engineering into the field of self-discharging 

ships and barges for bulk materials as agents for BMH Marine 

Sweden, now Cargotec Bulk.

JORGE ANTAS BARROS, 55

Advisor for Brazil and Latin America Region

Mr Jorge Antas Barros was appointed Advisor to the Group in October 

2012 to assist and advise on the Group’s internationalization plan 

into Brazil and the Latin American region. Mr Barros is a Portuguese 

citizen and a lawyer by profession practicing at Baba & Mata in Lisbon, 

Portugal. He is the Honorary Consul of the Republic of Lithuania since 

2010 and Vice President of the Chamber of Commerce and Industry 

Portugal /Baltics since 2011. Between 1985 to 1994, Mr Barros held 

various key appointments including; European Parliament Officer of 

European Union in Brussels, Cabinet Minister of National Defence 

and the Secretary of State for Defense, and Member of the German 

Marshall Fond/joined the Marshall Memorial Fellowship Program - 

United States of America. From 1994 onwards, Mr Barros went into 

the academic fields holding key appointments as Secretary-General 

of the University Technology of Viseu and subsequently Professor 

of European Law at the University Technology of Viseu. Mr Barros 

graduated with a Degree in Law from the Catholic University of Lisbon, 

majoring in International Relations and European Law. He also have 

qualifications in European Law at the Free University of Brussels and 

the Catholic University of Leuven in Belgium.

JORGEN GISMERVIK, 50

Advisor for Europe Region

Mr Gismervik is a Norwegian citizen who has more than 20 years 

of experience in worldwide oil and gas, and offshore and marine 

industries. He is previously a substantial shareholder of Marshal 

Systems Pte Ltd and has since been appointed as Advisor to the 

Group covering the European region and specialization in marine 

telecommunication field. Over the years, Mr Gismervik have built-up 

several telecommunication companies in Europe and since 1999 

founded a worldwide telecommunication company in Norway where he 

is also the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer. Additionally, 

since 2006, he is also a Director and substantial shareholder of 

a Spanish-registered maritime telecommunication company. Mr 

Gismervik holds a First Class Honours Bachelor Degree in Telecom 

Engineering from the University of Stavanger and also possesses 

several relevant and recognized certification for the electronic and 

telecommunication industry.

HELMI KOH, 57

Advisor for Southeast Asia Region

Mr Helmi Koh is a Singaporean who has more than 30 years of 

experience in worldwide oil and gas, and offshore and marine 

industries. He is the Chairman of Samudra Group of Companies 

consisting of Samudra MPC, Samudra Asia Pacific, Tap Marine and 

Offshore Services and District Energy Ventures, doing marine & 

offshore chartering, project managements and supplies in Malaysia. 

Mr Koh holds a Masters of Business Administration, and has vast 

experience in handling projects over the past 20 years.
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ANDY LIM, 56

Chairman and Executive Director

ONG CHOO GUAN, 62

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

LIN WEI DANIEL, 30

Executive Director

NG YEAU CHONG, 47

Chief Operating Officer

Mr Ng was appointed Chief Operating Officer of the Company on 6 

August 2010. Mr Ng has more than 20 years of professional experience 

covering Sales & Marketing, Program Management, and Operations & 

Training in both public and private sectors. An Overseas Merit Scholar 

(SAF), Mr Ng was with the Republic of Singapore Navy for more than 

10 years. Prior to joining the Group, he served as Asia Consulting 

Solution Director (Oracle Consulting Services, 2007-2010), Vice 

President (UOB, 2000-2007), and Assistant Head (Spring Singapore 

1999-2000). Mr Ng holds a Master of Arts from University of Oxford 

and a MBA (Accountancy) from Nanyang Technological University.  

Mr Ng is a Certified Financial Analyst (CFA), and a Financial Risk 

Manager (FRM).

LOW JOOI KOK, 49

Chief Financial Officer

Mr Low was appointed Chief Financial Officer of the Company on 

2 March 2010. Mr Low has more than 20 years of commercial 

experience spanning sales, marketing and line-of-business executive 

management, financial management and operational management. 

He was Chief Financial Officer of IBM Singapore in 1998, and 

then Director of Business Partner Sales for ASEAN and South Asia 

till 2009. Prior to joining IBM, Mr Low was with Visa International, 

holding various appointments overseeing financial planning and 

management of strategic business investments for Visa within the 

Asia-Pacific region. Mr Low holds a Master of Business Administration 

from Southern Illinois University, Carbondale and is a Certified Public 

Accountant.

01.

02.

TAY MONG SENG JEFFREY, 55

Managing Director, Marshal Systems Pte Ltd

Mr Tay is the founder and Managing Director of Marshal Systems Pte 

Ltd, a leading system integrator preferred by internationally-renowned 

companies in the offshore and marine industry. He began his career 

in the offshore and marine industry in 1981 with Singapore Slipway 

and Engineering, a subsidiary of Keppel Shipyard. In 1983, he 

joined Kongsberg (Asia) to handle projects for Far East Levingston 

Shipbuilding which is now known as Keppel FELS. Mr Tay brings to 

the Group more than 29 years of industry experience and believes 

differentiation is the key to outshining competitors in the business 

world. Mr Tay received various training and certification in the areas 

of electrical, electronics, communication services, and also sales and 

marketing management.

PEH CHEE OON LAWRENCE, 51

General Manager, Viking Airtech Yantai Facility

Mr Peh was appointed General Manager (Yantai-China) of the company 

on 1 December 2012. Mr Peh has 14 years of international experience, 

having worked and lived abroad on 3 continents and 4 cities since 

1998. With more than 22 years of management experience in the 

contract manufacturing industry (both mechanical and electronics). Mr 

Peh received various training and certification in the areas of quality, 

production, procurement, operations management, and also sales 

and marketing management.
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Top left to right: Low Jooi Kok, Ng Yeau Chong, Lin Wei Daniel, Tay Mong Seng Jeffrey, Peh Chee Oon Lawrence

Bottom left to right: Ong Choo Guan, Andy Lim
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This document has been prepared by the Company and its contents have been reviewed by the Company’s Sponsor, CIMB Bank Berhad, Singapore branch (“Sponsor”), for 

compliance with the relevant rules of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST”), this being the SGX-ST Listing Manual Section B: Rules of Catalist. The 

no responsibility for the contents of this document including the correctness of any of the statements or opinions made or reports contained in this document. The contact 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

INTRODUCTION

VOM” or the “Company” or the “Group
Code”). The Company 

stringent internal checks and controls, and accountability.

Guided by the Code, VOM adheres and apply them in both substance and form, and continually seek to modify, improve and keep current to its 
ever-changing business dynamics. The Company believes that only in doing so, Shareholders’ interests are safeguarded, and the Company is 
better able to deliver its long-term strategic commitments of maximizing Shareholder value and returns.

adherence to the principles and guidelines prescribed in the Code, and other applicable rules and regulations.

BOARD MATTERS

The Board sets the benchmark and is responsible for VOM’s corporate governance standards and policies. Its leadership responsibilities entail 

functions of the Board are to:
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times with respect to the Group’s business plans.

The key roles of the Board are:

5.   Mr Lien Kait Long, Independent Director

Delegation of Authority on certain Board Matters

which is governed by clear terms of reference which have been approved by the Board. Minutes of all Board Committee meetings are circulated to 

of interest that may arise between Directors’ interests and those of the Group, the Company has put in place appropriate procedures including 

The Board has delegated the day-to-day operations to the Management while reserving key matters for Board approval. Key functions include 

and serve as the conduit between the Company’s Board and the subsidiary’s Board primarily for oversight in performance management as well 

Board are:

and declaration of dividends.

businesses, operations and processes of the Group. There are no new Directors appointed during the year.
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Meetings of the Board and Board Committees

decision. If Directors are unable to attend Board meetings physically, such meetings may be conducted via telephone, video conference or any 
other form of electronic or instantaneous communications.

The Directors, who are also the Chairman of the subsidiary’s Board are given direct and full access to the Management team of the Group’s three 
main subsidiaries through scheduled monthly subsidiary Board meetings.

are as follows:

Attendance of Board Members Board Audit Committee
Nominating 
Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

Mr Ong Choo Guan

Mr Lien Kait Long

Upon appointment, each new Director is put through an orientation program to familiarise new Directors with the Group’s business activities, 
strategic directions, policies, major impending projects as well as corporate governance practices of the Group. In addition, new Directors are 
also encouraged to attend the relevant courses and programs from the Singapore Institute of Directors (“SID
responsibilities of a Director in the context of a listed company.

entities of the Group operate. Updates on relevant legal, regulatory and accounting developments may be in writing or disseminated by way of 

regulators. The Company also encourages the Directors to be members of the SID, and for them to receive regular journal updates and training 

Principle 2: Board Composition and Guidance
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The Board comprises six members, with Independent Directors comprising more than one-third composition of the Board. The Company conducts 
an annual review of the size and composition of the Board to ensure that both aspects continue to meet the needs of the Group in managing the 
businesses as well as maintaining a strong independent element within the composition of the Board. The Board will continuously review this with 
a view to enhance corporate governance practices in tandem to proposed changes to the Code.

risk management. The Management is provided with full and direct access to the Board which also actively provides guidance and a broad range 
of views and perspectives.

There exists active participation and engagement among the Directors in often dynamic and stimulating exchanges of views and opinions at both 
the Committee and Board meetings. The Directors make decisions using their collective wisdom and exercise their individual opinions whilst at 

independent status of the Independent Directors and the independent element on the Board is maintained.

The duties and responsibilities of the Executive Directors are clearly set out in their service agreements. The Company has an on-going budget for 
all Directors to receive relevant training. Board members are encouraged to attend seminars and receive training in connection with their duties as 
Directors in areas such as accounting and legal knowledge, particularly on latest developments to relevant laws, regulations, accounting standards 
and changing commercial risks to enable them to make well-informed decision and to ensure that the Directors are competent in carrying out their 
expected roles and responsibilities. 

CEO”) positions are held by separate individuals. This is so that an appropriate balance of power 
and authority, with clear divisions of responsibilities and accountability, can be attained. This segregation of roles also facilitates a healthy, open 
exchange of views and opinions between the Board and Management in their deliberation of the business, strategic plans and key activities of the 
Company. The Chairman is not related to the CEO.
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responsible for promoting high standards of corporate governance.

decisions of the Board. The CEO works closely with the Chairman on formulating the Group’s operational strategies and matters to be tabled at 
the Board level.

The presence of a strong, independent and active participation of the Independent Directors ensures the proper functioning of the Board and good 

Chairman and CEO do not have unfettered powers of decisions. 

of the Chairman and CEO or CFO has failed to resolve or is inappropriate.

The Lead Independent Director may call for meetings of Independent Directors from time to time without the presence of other Directors and 
provide feedback to the Chairman after such meetings.

Principle 4: Board Membership

Nominating Committee

NC”) comprises:

functions are to:
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5. Review the size and composition of the Board with the objective of achieving a balanced Board with a proper mix of experience and 

  

by its Directors do not impede their respective performance in carrying out their duties to the Company.

Articles
AGM

Description of Nominating Process of New Directors

The search and nomination process for new Directors involves a review of the existing size and composition of the Board. In such reviews, 

as the ability of the potential candidate to contribute to discussions, deliberations and activities of the Board. In addition, the relevant experience, 

identifying and short listing of candidates.
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Key Information regarding Directors

Principle 5: Board Performance

review through an open face-to-face meeting where each predetermined attribute and criteria is discussed and challenged rigorously to reach a 
consensus on the assessment. Each of the attributes will be scored and instances are cited to demonstrate and substantiate against each attribute 

formulating strategic plans for the Management and monitoring the progress and performance against the set objectives. The Board committees 

adopted in the assessment includes whether the Director will continue to demonstrate commitment to the role (including commitment of time for 
Board and Committee meetings, intensity of participation at meetings and special contributions).

Principle 6: Access to Information

In order for the Board to make an informed decision and to facilitate meaningful deliberated discussions during meetings of the Board and Board 

are circulated to the Board prior to its meetings. Information provided also include background or explanatory information relating to matters to be 

the Group’s performance, position and prospects. Besides the provision of such information to the Board, Senior Management also conduct 
presentations to discuss the information and encourage active exchanges of views and sharing. The Board also delegates the monthly in-depth 

meetings are held whereby the Senior Management will present and review monthly performance and associated results. Directors are given 

from Management and are provided such additional information as needed in a timely manner to make informed decisions. 
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Board meetings, the Board also has separate, independent and direct access to the Company’s Executive Management team and the Company 

keep current and be apprised of the developments within the subsidiaries and the Group.

guidance on corporate governance, and on legal and statutory compliance. Under the direction of the Chairman, the Company Secretary ensures 
that Board procedures and applicable rules and regulations are complied with. She also acts as a channel of communications for information 

consolidates Directors’ feedback and evaluation. The minutes of all Board meetings are circulated to the Board for review. The Directors have 
separate and independent access to the Company Secretary. The Board reviews and determines the appointment and removal of the Company 
Secretary. The Directors, whether collectively or individually, may, at the expense of the Company, seek and obtain independent professional advice 

REMUNERATION MATTERS

Principle 7: Policy for Developing Remuneration Policies

Remuneration Committee

of each Director. Directors are not involved in deciding their own remuneration.  The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) comprises entirely of 
Independent Directors. The RC also provides oversight on Executive Management’s remuneration packages and policy framework. The RC 
comprises of the following members:

The principal duties and responsibilities of the RC are to: 

a. Recommend for the entire Board’s approval an appropriate framework for remuneration (including but not limited to Director’s fees, 

d.  Ensure accountability and transparency in the Company’s policies and procedures when determining the remuneration of the Directors and 
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contribution and responsibilities of the Directors.

Independent Directors are paid 

competitive compensation and progressive policies, with appropriate mix of short and long term incentives, are in place to attract, retain and 
motivate competent and committed Management. 

Principle 8: Level and Mix of Remuneration

In making its recommendations to the Board on the level and mix of remuneration, the Remuneration Committee seeks to be competitive in order 
to attract, motivate and retain high-performing executives to drive the Group’s businesses whilst operating within the Group’s risk parameters, so 
as to maximise long-term Shareholder value. In its deliberation of remuneration level and mix, the RC takes into consideration industry practices 
and benchmarks against relevant industry players as well as comparable positional responsibilities to ensure that its remuneration practices are 
competitive. The Company adopts a performance-driven and meritocratic approach to compensation, with rewards linked to individual and 
corporate performance to align interests of Management with those of Shareholders and promote the long-term success of the Company. Such 
performance-related remuneration should take account of the risk policies of the Company, be symmetric with risk outcomes and be sensitive to 
the time horizon of risks.

Long Term Incentive Plans

VLTIP”), and 
VOM Scheme”).

and rewards of key executives with the interest of the Shareholders, and to participate and share in the Group’s growth and success.

Senior Executives and to also reward them for the performance of the Company and that of the individual.

the Company through high performance. It also serves as motivation to key Senior Management in delivering high performance and aligning to 
enhancing longer-term Shareholder value.
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for the year for the individuals or collective group of individuals. These share awards represent individual’s right to receive fully-paid shares of the 
Company when and if their predetermined conditions have been met. The number of shares to be released will vary with the achievement level of 
the individual employee.

In using the VOM Scheme towards the retention of talented employees, the grant of options is made based on the retention value assessed on 
the individual on whom the options were granted. There are no predetermined performance targets on which the grant is conditional upon, these 

Details of employee share schemes which include, size of grants, methodology of valuing stock options, exercise price of options that were granted 
as well as outstanding, whether the exercise price was at the market or otherwise on the date of grant and vesting schedule are disclosed in the 

Principle 9: Disclosure on Remuneration

Remuneration of Directors and Key Management Personnel

Director and the CEO on a named basis, the Board is of the opinion that it is not in the best interest of the Company to disclose the exact details 
of their remuneration due to the competitiveness of the industry for key talent.

Directors’ Remuneration
 

Directors Fee  Salary  Bonus  Allowance  Shares  Total

Between $500,001 and $750,000       

-

Between $250,001 and $500,000       

Mr Ong Choo Guan -

Less than $250,000       

- -

- - -

Mr Lien Kait Long - - -

- - -

- - -

Notes:
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Top 5 Key Management Personnel’s Remuneration 

Key Management Personnel  Salary  Bonus  Allowance  Shares  Others  Total

Between $250,001 and $500,000       

-

Mr Low Jooi Kok -

Less than $250,000       

- - -

- -

Notes:

Save as disclosed above, there are no employees who are immediate family members of a Director or the CEO, and whose remuneration exceeds 
$50,000 during the year.

Directors’ Fees

for attending Board meetings. Independent Directors who serve on the respective Board Committees are paid additional basic and attendance 
fees for such services. Directors who assume Chairmanship appointment at the subsidiary level are paid an advisory fee by the subsidiary for 

Director decides his own fees. Our current Board fee structure is set out below:

Fees ($)

Board of Directors

Board Committees

Remuneration Committee Member 5,000

Subsidiary Board
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To ensure competitiveness, the Company conducts periodic reviews of Directors’ remuneration to benchmark its Directors’ fees against the 
amounts paid by other comparable listed companies. Following the review, it is proposed that adjustments be made to the Board Committee’s fee 

Current ($) Proposed ($)

Board of Directors (Basic fee)

Chairman

Member

Remuneration Committee Chairman

Member 5,000

Chairman

Member 5,000

-

It remains the practice of the Company to pay Directors’ fees throughout the year during their respective tenure of service. In this regard, the 

For better alignment with Shareholders’ interest, Directors and key executives of the Company are encouraged to purchase the Company’s shares 
from the open market and to hold such shares on a long term basis, subject to their compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Independent 
Directors may purchase and hold Company’s shares provided their independence remain uncompromised during the period and at any point 

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Principle 10: Accountability 

SFRS”) prescribed by the 

related material information of the Group to Shareholders via announcements to the SGX-ST and, where appropriate, press releases, and media 

Group’s performance, position and prospects. In addition, where appropriate and necessary, details on the Group’s diverse business operations 
are also discussed to provide Shareholders and public with clarity and better understanding of its business portfolio.

performance, position and prospects.

Principle 11: Risk Management and Internal Controls
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RISK MANAGEMENT

measures to control and mitigate these risks within the Group’s policies and strategies. The Company has an Enterprise Risk Management 
AC”) and approved by the Board of 

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the overall internal control framework and is fully aware of the need to put in place a system of internal controls 

internal control system will preclude all errors and irregularities, as a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to 
achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Company’s 

Based on the internal controls established and maintained by the Group, works performed by external and internal auditors and actions taken 

loss, and includes the safeguarding of Shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets, the maintenance of proper accounting records, the 

business risks. 

Principle 12: Audit Committee

remedial plans implemented towards improving overall controls and risk management posture of the Company.

to investigate any matter within the Terms of Reference, and has full access to and the cooperation of the Management, as well as the full discretion 
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channels of communication.

review.
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IPT”) to ensure that there are no improper activities of the Company. The 

Code of Conduct

processes. Similarly, such behaviour and conduct is expected of our employees in their dealings with fellow employees, customers, suppliers and 
business associates.

The Company has in place a whistle-blowing framework where employees of the Company may raise concerns about possible corporate 

impropriety and clarity, including foreign language translation to embrace a greater ethnic composition of its employee population.

Principle 13: Internal Audit

The Board recognises that it is its responsibility to maintain a system of internal control processes to safeguard Shareholders’ investments and 

internal audit function and team within the organisational setup.

timeliness and progress of implementing the corrective or improvement actions are measured and reported.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Principle 14: Shareholder Rights

To facilitate Shareholders’ ownership rights, the Company ensures that all material information is disclosed on a comprehensive, accurate and 
timely basis. The Company recognises that the release of timely and relevant information is central to good corporate governance and enables 

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Principle 15: Communication with Shareholders

The Company aims to provide fair, relevant, comprehensive and timely information regarding the Group’s performance and progress, and other 
pertinent information to Shareholders and investment community to enable them to make informed investment decisions. The Board is mindful of 

Exchange.

on communications between the Company’s Management and its Shareholders, as well as the investment community. In addition, the Company’s 

timely basis. Material information is simultaneously disseminated to the SGX-ST, and where relevant, the press and posted on the Company’s 
website at www.vikingom.com
Company’s website.

availability. Contact details and channels of communications with Shareholders and public remain open and relevant information is duly updated 
and conveyed via the Company’s websites and email channels.

Principle 16: Conduct of Shareholder Meetings

are an opportune forum and suitable platform for Shareholders and the Board and Management of the Company to engage in active exchange of 
ideas. In addition, the Company holds such Shareholders’ meetings onsite at its premises in order to provide Shareholders with greater opportunity 
to understand and appreciate the Company’s business operations.
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and the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, where necessary and appropriate.

The Company Secretary or her representative prepares minutes of Shareholders’ meetings which captures the essence of the comments and 

the voting process. 

DEALINGS IN SECURITIES
Listing Rule 1207 sub-Rule (19)

are in possession of unpublished price sensitive information, or on short-term considerations.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There were no material contracts entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries involving the interests of its CEO, Directors or Controlling 
Shareholders.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE

the announcement were as follows:

Intended Use of Net Proceeds
Intended Allocation 

$Million
Amount Utilised

$Million

Construction of Viking Innovation Centre

0.5

Total 9.2 5.7
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The Company also announced a change in the foregoing allocation of the net proceeds, and that it would be applying the entire balance of the 

proceeds were as follows: 

(a)  the more immediate needs of the Company to fund the capital injection into Quick Booms Investments Limited, being its new business 
venture, as compared to the progressive payments for the construction of the Viking Innovation Centre, which can be funded from time to 

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted an internal policy in respect of transactions with interested persons and has set out the procedures for review and 
approval of the Company’s interested person transactions.

length and under normal commercial terms, and the terms of the transactions are not prejudicial to the interests of the Company or its minority 
Shareholders.

Name of Interested Person

Aggregate value of all interested person 

(excluding transactions less than 
$100,000 and transactions conducted 

under Shareholders’ mandate pursuant 
to Rule 920)

Aggregate value of all interested 
person transactions conducted under 

Shareholders’ mandate pursuant to Rule 
920 (excluding transactions less 

than $100,000)

There are no transactions to be disclosed 
meeting this criteria

There are no Shareholders’ mandate 

SPONSOR
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1. DIRECTORS

 Ong Choo Guan

 Lien Kait Long

2. ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES, DEBENTURES AND WARRANTS

shares, debentures or warrants of the Company or any other body corporate.

3. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES

corporations (other than wholly-owned subsidiaries) as stated below:

Direct Interest Deemed Interest

Name of Director

At the 
beginning 

year 

At the end 

year

At 
21 January 

2014

At the 
beginning 

year 

At the end 

year

At 
21 January 

2014

Ong Choo Guan 50,000

– – –

Lien Kait Long 500,000 – – –

– – –
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3. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

Direct Interest Deemed Interest

Name of Director

At the 
beginning of At the end of 

At 
21 January 

2014

At the 
beginning of At the end of At 21 January 

2014

– – –

Ong Choo Guan – – –

– – –

– – –

Lien Kait Long – – –

– – –

– – – –

Ong Choo Guan – 500,000 500,000 – – –

– – – –

– 50,000 50,000 – – –

Lien Kait Long – 50,000 50,000 – – –

– 50,000 50,000 – – –

Ong Choo Guan – –

– – – –

Lien Kait Long – – – –

– – – –

4. DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTUAL BENEFITS
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5. OPTIONS

Option Scheme (the “VOM Scheme”) for the granting of non-transferable options that are settled by physical delivery of the ordinary shares 
of the Company, to eligible group employees and Directors.

follows:

Grant date Expiry date Exercise price ($) Number of options

Total

 
 Details of the options to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company granted to Directors of the Company pursuant to the VOM Scheme 

are as follows:

Name of participant

Aggregate options 
granted since 

commencement of 
Scheme to end of Options granted during 

Aggregate options 
exercised since 

commencement of 
Scheme to end of 

Aggregate options 
outstanding as at end of 

– –

Ong Choo Guan – –

– –

– –

Lien Kait Long – –

– –

Total – –

 
 Details of options granted to directors and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to the VOM Scheme are as follows:

Aggregate options granted 
since commencement of 

year
Options granted during the 

Aggregate options exercised 
since commencement of 

Aggregate options 
outstanding as at end 

– –
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5.  OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

options available under the Schemes.

granted.

6. VIKING LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

participant achieving the prescribed performance targets and upon expiry of the prescribed vesting period. 

 The performance targets to be set shall take into account both the medium-term to long-term corporate objectives of the Group and the 
individual performance of the participant and will be aimed at sustaining long-term growth. The corporate objectives shall cover market 
competitiveness, business growth and productivity growth. In addition, the participant’s length of service with the Group, achievement 
of past performance targets, value-add to the Group’s performance and development and overall enhancement to Shareholder value, 
amongst others, will be taken into account. 

Grant date
Balance as at

1.1.2013 
Grants during the Forfeited during the Balance as at

31.12.2013

– –

7. WARRANTS

Date of issue

Warrants 
outstanding at 

1.1.2013 
Warrants 

issued
Warrants 
exercised

Warrants 
expired

Warrants 
outstanding at 

31.12.2013 
Date of 

expiration

– – –

– –
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7.  WARRANTS (CONTINUED)

8. AUDIT COMMITTEE

including the following:

 

auditors, without the presence of the Company’s management, at least once a year. 
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9. AUDITOR

On behalf of the board of Directors:

                                                                           

Director Director
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

Directors,

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall 
due.

On behalf of the board of Directors:

                                                                           

Director Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF VIKING OFFSHORE AND MARINE LIMITED

loss accounts and balance sheets and to maintain accountability of assets.

Auditor’s responsibility

statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 

statements.

Opinion

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

 

Singapore
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note 2013 2012
$ $

(Restated)
Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales

Other items of income
Other income 5

Other items of expense
Marketing and distribution expenses

Other operating expenses 
Finance costs

Taxation

Discontinued operations

Other comprehensive income:

Foreign currency translation
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Owners of the Company

- Loss from discontinued operations

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 

- Loss from discontinued operations

Earnings per share (cents per share)
-  Basic
-  Diluted
Earnings per share (cents per share) from continuing operations
-  Basic
-  Diluted
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Group Company

Note

2013

$

2012

$

2013

$

2012

$
Non-current assets

 
Intangible assets – –
Investment in subsidiaries  – –

 
 – – – –

Deferred tax assets – – –
 

Current assets
Inventories  – –
Trade receivables  – –

Other receivables and deposits  
Due from customers for contracts work-in-progress – –

 
 

Current liabilities
Trade payables  – –
Bills payable  – – –
Due to customers for contracts work-in-progress – –
Other payables and accruals  
Tax payable  –
Deferred rental  
Finance lease obligations  – –
Term loans  –
Due to subsidiaries (non-trade)  – –

 
Net current assets/(liabilities)
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities  
Deferred rental  – –
Finance lease obligations  – –
Term loans  – –

 
Net assets
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital
Treasury shares
Reserves

– – –
Total equity



30

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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Note Attributable to owners of the Company

Non-
controlling
interests Total equity

2013 
Group

Share 
capital 

(Note 28(a))

Treasury 
shares (Note 

28(b))
Accumulated 

Other 
reserves
(Note 29)

Total 
reserves

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

– – –

Other comprehensive income

– – – –

Foreign currency translation – – – –

Other comprehensive income for the  
 year, net of tax – – – –

Total comprehensive income for the  
 year – –

Contributions by and distribution to 
owners
Employee share-based expense – – – –

Dividends on ordinary shares – – – –

– – – – –

Issuance of shares pursuant to private  
 placement – – – – –

Issuance of shares pursuant to rights  
 issue – – – – –

Issuance of shares pursuant to warrants  
 exercised – – – – –

Share issuance expense – – – – –

Total transactions with owners in their  
 capacity as owners –

Changes in ownership interest in 
subsidiary

Disposal of subsidiary – – – – –

Total change in ownership interest in  
 subsidiary – – – – –

–
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Note Attributable to owners of the Company

Non-
controlling
interests Total equity

2012
Group

Share 
capital 

(Note 28(a))

Treasury 
shares (Note 

28(b))
Accumulated 

Other 
reserves
(Note 29)

Total 
reserves

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

–

– – –

Other comprehensive income

– – – –

Foreign currency translation – – – –

Other comprehensive income for the  
 year, net of tax – – – –

Total comprehensive income for the  
 year – –

Contributions by and distribution to 
owners
Employee share-based expense – – – –

Dividends on ordinary shares – – –

– – – – –

– – – – –

Total transactions with owners in their  
 capacity as owners –
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Note Attributable to owners of the Company Total equity

2013
Company

Share 
capital 

(Note 28(a))

Treasury 
shares (Note 

28(b))
Accumulated  

Other 
reserves
 (Note 29)

Total 
reserves

$ $ $ $ $ $

– – –

Other comprehensive income

– – –

Other comprehensive income for the  
 year, net of tax – – –

Total comprehensive income  
 for the year – –

Contribution by and distribution to owners
Employee share-based expense – – –

Dividends on ordinary shares – – –

– – – –

Issuance of shares pursuant to private   
 placement – – – –

Issuance of shares pursuant to rights issue – – – –

Issuance of shares pursuant to warrants  
 exercised – – – –

Share issuance expense – – – –

Total transactions with owners in their  
  capacity as owners
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Note Attributable to owners of the Company Total equity

2012

Company

Share 

capital 

(Note 28(a))

Treasury 

shares (Note 

28(b))

Accumulated 

Other 

reserves

 (Note 29)

Total 

reserves

$ $ $ $ $ $

–

– – –

Other comprehensive income

– – –

Other comprehensive income for the year, 
net of tax – – –

Total comprehensive income for the year – –

Contribution by and distribution to owners
Employee share-based expense – – –

Dividends on ordinary shares – – –

– – – –

– – – –

Total transactions with owners in their 
capacity as owners –
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note 2013

$

2012

$

(Restated)

 Employee share-based expense

5 –

–

 Finance costs

 Interest income

 Inventories written down from continuing operations

 Inventories written down from discontinued operations –

 Loss on disposal of subsidiary –

Changes in working capital:

 Inventories

 Trade receivables

 Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

 Due from customers for contracts work-in-progress

 Trade payables

 Unearned revenue –

 Other payables and accruals

 Due to customers for contracts work-in-progress

Interest paid

Interest received

Income taxes paid
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note 2013

$

2012

$

(Restated)

–

–

–

–

Cash (used in)/from investing activities

–

Repayment of bank borrowings

Fixed deposits (secured) –

Repayment of amount due to a Director –

–

–

–

Share issuance expense –

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Note A:

–
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

 The Company is a limited liability Company incorporated and domiciled in Singapore and is listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities 
Trading Limited (SGX-ST).

 The principal activities of the Company are the provision of management and other services to related companies and investment holding. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (FRS).

Changes in accounting policies

Standards issued but not yet effective  

Description
periods beginning 

on or after
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

 

that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the arrangement whereas joint venture 
is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. 

 

Basis of consolidation and business combinations

(a) Basis of consolidation

 

prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied to like transactions and events 
in similar circumstances.

dividends are eliminated in full.

consolidated until the date that such control ceases. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations (continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

  (continued)

loses control over a subsidiary, it:

- De-recognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when 

retained earnings, as appropriate.

 

forward in certain instances from the previous basis of consolidation:

recognised in goodwill.

losses were attributed to the Group, unless the non-controlling interest had a binding obligation to cover these. Losses prior 

- Upon loss of control, the Group accounted for the investment retained at its proportionate share of net asset value at the 

(b) Business combinations

 

as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are received. 

changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognised in accordance 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Business combinations (continued)

 (continued)

 

 Business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 

previously recognised goodwill.

part of goodwill.

Transactions with non-controlling interests
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Transactions with non-controlling interests (continued)

Foreign currency

currency. 

(a) 

 Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries and are 
recorded on initial recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet 

the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

investment in foreign operations, which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and accumulated under foreign 

on disposal of the foreign operation. 

(b)

 For consolidation purpose, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into SGD at the rate of exchange ruling at 

 In the case of a partial disposal without loss of control of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share 

or loss. For partial disposals of associates or jointly controlled entities that are foreign operations, the proportionate share of the 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The cost includes the cost of replacing part 

to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

 Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the 
asset as follows:

Leasehold buildings –

–

–

Motor vehicles –

Machinery –

the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Intangible assets

(a)

 Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment 
losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (continued)

(a)

 The cash-generating units to which goodwill have been allocated is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an 
indication that the cash-generating unit may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable 

goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain 
or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative fair values of the 
operations disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained. 

and liabilities of the foreign operations and are recorded in the functional currency of the foreign operations and translated in 

(b) 

amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development 

is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at 

changes in accounting estimates. 

events and circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. 

made on a prospective basis. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (continued)

(b) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

other directly attributed cost of preparing the asset for its intended use. These costs are amortised to the income statement 

(iv) 

 The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or 

corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators. 

 The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each of the 
Group’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case the impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up 
to the amount of any previous revaluation.

 For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised 
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or cash-generating 

determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the 
asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 

at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 

Subsidiaries

activities.  

Financial instruments

(a) 

(i)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

(a) 

(i) 

 Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic 
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at 

(ii) 

are de-recognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.

(iii) 

delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

(b) 

directly attributable transaction costs.

(i)

instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships. Separated 

(ii)

are de-recognised, and through the amortisation process.

(c) 

the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) 

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

payments. 

occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying 

(b) 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) 

technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates, and indicates that the cost of the investment in 

has been below its original cost.   

comprehensive income.

loss. Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset, using the rate of interest 

 Cash and cash equivalents

include bank overdrafts that form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Inventories

 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present locations and 
conditions are accounted for as follows: 

- Finished goods: costs of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating 
capacity. These costs are assigned on a weighted average basis.

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Construction contracts

respectively by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date (the percentage of completion 
method), when the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably. 

actual contract costs incurred can be compared with prior estimates.

only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable and contract costs are recognised as expense in the period in 
which they are incurred. 

contract revenue. 

costs to complete. 

 Contract revenue – Contract revenue corresponds to the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and any variations in contract 

in general and can be allocated to the contract. 

Provisions

 General

estimated reliably. 

experience. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised annually.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred rental

This is amortised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

Borrowing costs

production of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale 
are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets are substantially 

interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

(a) 

the related service is performed. 

(b) 

 Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised as a liability when they are accrued to the employees. The undiscounted 
liability for leave expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the reporting period is recognised for services 
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period. The liability for leave expected to be settled beyond twelve months 
from the end of the reporting period is determined using the projected unit credit method. The net total of service costs, net interest 

 (c) 

 Employees (including Senior Executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share options and share awards as 

reference to the fair value of the options and awards at the date on which the options and awards are granted which takes into 

the employee share-based payment reserve, over the vesting period. The cumulative expense recognised at each reporting date 

conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vested irrespective of whether or not the market condition 

the option and award does not vest as the result of a failure to meet a non-vesting condition that is within the control of the Group 
or the employee, it is accounted for as a cancellation. In such case, the amount of the compensation cost that otherwise would 

share-based payment reserve is transferred to retained earnings upon expiry of the share option.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases

 The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date: 

(a) 

 Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased item, are 
capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease 

charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  

incurred. 

 Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term, if there is no 
reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. 

basis.

(b) 

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised 

Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and 
the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which 

such a component represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations or is part of a single coordinated plan 
to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue

measured, regardless of when the payment is made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, taking 

(a) 

recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

(b) 

 Revenue from construction contracts is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of 
each reporting period, when the outcome can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is measured by reference to the 
proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs.

(c) 

 Revenue from rendering of services is recognised as and when the services are rendered.

(d) 

provided to leases are recognised as a reduction of rental income over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

(e) 

 Management fee income is recognised as and when the management services are rendered.

(f) 

 Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

(g) 

(h) 

 Rental income on the sublet of a leased property is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. The aggregate costs 
of incentives provided to leases are recognised as a reduction of rental income over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation

(a) 

 Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income. 

respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(b) 

- where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction 

the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except: 

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no 

deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

(b) 

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or 
the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each reporting 
period. 

current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

(c) 

 Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except:

- Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included. 

 The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in 
the balance sheet.

Segment reporting

 For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating segments based on their products and services which are independently 
managed by the respective segment managers responsible for the performance of the respective segments under their charge. The 
segment managers report directly to the management of the Company who regularly review the segment results in order to allocate 

Share capital and share issue expenses

of ordinary shares are deducted against share capital.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Treasury shares

Government grants 

 Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be 

annual instalments.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy

 Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred on the date of the event or change in circumstances that 
caused the transfer.

 Contingencies

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. 

 Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the balance sheet of the Group, except for contingent liabilities assumed in a 
business combination that are present obligations and which the fair values can be reliably determined.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

 Related parties

(iii) Is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or Company or of a parent of the Company.

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow 
subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which 
the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(a) 

 In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, apart from those 

(i) Impairment of available-for-sale investments
 

judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, historical share price movements and 

(b) 

 The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period are 

prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or 

(i) Impairment of intangible assets

and customer relationships have been allocated to have been determined based on value in use calculations. The value in 

extrapolation purposes. The key assumptions applied in the determination of the value in use are disclosed and further 

(ii) Impairment of loans and receivables

To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the probability of 

historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. The carrying amount of the Group’s loans and 
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(b) 

(iii) Construction contracts revenue

 The Group recognises construction contracts revenue by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at 
the end of each reporting period, when the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is 
measured by reference to the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total 

engineers. The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising from contracts at the end of each reporting period are 

(iv)  

revisions to the valuation of inventories.

(v) Income taxes

 Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount and timing of future taxable 
income. Given the wide range of international business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing 

such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax provisions already recorded. 

authorities of the respective countries in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such 

the respective Group Company’s domicile. 
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4. REVENUE

Group

 2013 2012

$ $

(Restated)

Sale of goods

Construction contracts revenue

Rendering of services

Dividend income –

5. OTHER INCOME

Group

2013 2012

$ $

(Restated)

–

Rental income of leased property

Government grants

Contract cancellation income –

Foreign exchange gain, net –

–

Freight income from customers

Recovery of expenses from customers

Others
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Group

2013 2012

$ $

(Restated)

(a) 

–

 Foreign exchange loss, net –

 Inventories written down

(b) 

 - Other auditors

 - Other auditors

 Operating lease expenses

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Group

2013 2012

$ $

(Restated)

Salaries and bonuses

Central provident fund contributions
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7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

(a) Employee share option plans

(the “VOM Scheme”), are entitled to a grant of options. The options will vest if the employee remains in service for a period of one 

 

Number WAEP Number WAEP

2013 2013
$

2012 2012
$

- Granted – –

– –
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7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

(a) Employee share option plans (continued)

 Fair value of share options granted

 The fair value of share options as at the date of grant is estimated by the Group using the Black-Scholes model, taking into account 

below:

Date of grant

 08.06.2012 20.12.2010

  0.00   0.00

Expected life of option (years)

 The expected life of the options is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The 

(b) Viking Long Term Incentive Plan 

 The details of the plan are described below:

 
target or time-based service conditions or a combination of both.

  – Sales growth, growth in earnings and return on investment.

  – Vesting based on achievement of stated performance conditions over one year performance period.
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7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

(b) Viking Long Term Incentive Plan (continued)

 

Group

2013 2012

$ $

– –

- Granted –

–

 Fair value of share awards granted

2013

  0.00

 0.50

Expected life of award (years)

Share price at date of grant ($)
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8. FINANCE COSTS

Group

2013 2012

$ $

(Restated)

Interest expense on:

-  term loans

9. TAXATION

Group

2013 2012

$ $

(Restated)

Current income tax – continuing operations:

-  current year

Deferred income tax – continuing operations:

-  over provision in respect of previous years –

Income tax attributable to continuing operations
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9. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Group

2013 2012

$ $

(Restated)

Income not subject to tax

Deferred tax assets not recognised

Others

 Unrecognised tax losses

recoverability. The use of these tax losses is subject to the agreement of the tax authorities and compliance with certain provisions of the 
tax legislation of the respective countries in which certain subsidiaries operate.
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9. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

 

undistributed earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries as the Group has determined that undistributed earnings of its subsidiaries will 
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

 

 Group

Consolidated 
balance sheet

Consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income

2013
$

2012
$

2013
$

2012
$

Deferred tax assets

–

–

Deferred tax liabilities

–

Disposal of subsidiaries – – –

– – –

Deferred income tax
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9. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

 Company

Balance sheet

2013 2012

$ $

Deferred tax liability

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) 

number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the existing warrants of the Company into ordinary shares.

Group

2013 2012

$ $
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10. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(a) 

Number of shares

2013 2012

transactions during the year.

they are anti-dilutive. 

(b) 

year attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share 

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

 The entire results from the disposal groups are presented separately on the statement of comprehensive income as “discontinued 
operations”. 
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) 

Group

2013 2012

$ $

(Restated)

Revenue

Other income

Expenses

Interest expense

Taxation

Loss on disposal of subsidiary –

(b) 

Group

2013 2012

$ $

(Restated)

Operating

Investing

Financing
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(c) 

Group

2013 2012

Loss per share from discontinued operations attributable to 
 the owners of the Company (cents per share)

Basic

Diluted

 The basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, attributable 
to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share computation and 
dividing the loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number 

 
(d) 

2013 2012

$ $

Inventories

Trade receivables –

Other receivables, deposits & prepayments

Trade payables

Bills payable –

Other payables and accruals

Deferred income –

Unearned revenue –

Finance lease obligations –

Tax payable

Deferred tax liabilities –

Deferred consideration receivable

–

Loss on disposal of subsidiary –

Consideration received
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(e) 

statement of comprehensive income.

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Leasehold 
buildings

Computers 

equipment

Renovation, 
furniture and Motor 

vehicles Machinery

Assets 
under 

construction Total

Group $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Cost

At 1.1.2012 –

– –

Disposals – – –

Disposal of subsidiaries – – – –

– – – – –

– – –

– –

–

–

– – –

Disposals – – –

Disposal of subsidiary – –

– – –

– –

Accumulated depreciation and 
 impairment loss

–

Charge for the year –

Disposals – – –

Disposal of subsidiaries – – – –

– – –

– –

–

Charge for the year –

– – –

Disposals – – –

Disposal of subsidiary – –

– – –

– –

–

Net carrying amount

–



72

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2013

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Computers  

equipment

Renovation, 
furniture and 

Total

$ $ $

Company

Cost

–

Accumulated depreciation

Charge for the year

–

Charge for the year

Net carrying amount
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

Customer

relationships

Order book

and projects

in progress Software

Club

membership Total

$ $ $ $ $ $

Group

Cost

– – – –

– – – –

– – – –

– – – –

Accumulated amortisation and 
impairment

–

– 55,000

– – – –

–

– –

– – – –

–

Net carrying amount

–

–
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

 

 The economic useful lives of customer relationships and orderbook and projects in progress as determined by the Group are disclosed in 

 

 Goodwill arising from business combinations has been allocated to two cash-generating units (“CGU”) for impairment testing as follows:

O&M HVAC O&M Tele Total

$ $ $

2013

Goodwill

Customer relationships

2012

Goodwill

Customer relationships

O&M HVAC O&M Tele

Growth rates
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

 

 The calculations of value in use for the CGUs are most sensitive to the following assumptions:

  – Gross margins are based on budgeted margins expected to be achieved in the next 5 years. 

 – The forecasted growth rates are based on published industry research and do not exceed the long-term average growth 
rate for the industries relevant to the CGUs. 

 

risk is incorporated by applying individual beta factors. The beta factors are evaluated annually based on publicly available market data. 

 

changes in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the unit to materiality exceed its recoverable amount.

 

 The amortisation of customer relationships, orderbook, project in progress and software are included in the “Other operating expenses” 

 

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company

2013 2012

$ $

Less:  Impairment losses
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14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Name 
Country of 

incorporation Principal activities
Proportion (%) of 

ownership interest

2013 2012

Singapore Investment holding

Singapore Design, manufacture, project management, 
and commissioning of heating, ventilation, air 
conditioning systems, and refrigeration systems

Singapore Dormant –

Singapore Distribution and wholesale of household, beauty 
and personal care products

–

Singapore Manufacture and repair of marine engines and ship 

accessories and parts

Singapore Design, manufacture, project management, 
and commissioning of heating, ventilation, air 
conditioning systems, and refrigeration systems

Singapore Contractors for electronic and electrical 
engineering works

Viking Facilities Management & Singapore Facilities management
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14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Name 
Country of 

incorporation Principal activities
Proportion (%) of 

ownership interest

2013 2012

Singapore Investment holding –

Singapore Investment holding –

Singapore Dormant –

of China
Marine air conditioning, manufacture, installation & 

Malaysia
systems

of China
Design, manufacture, project management, 
and commissioning of heating, ventilation, air 
conditioning systems, and refrigeration systems

Indonesia Design, manufacture, project management, 
and commissioning of heating, ventilation, air 
conditioning systems, and refrigeration systems 

of China
Contractors for electronic and electrical 
engineering works

–

Listing Manual.
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14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

 

 

Fair value 
recognised

$

Non-current asset

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables 

Other receivables and deposits

Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade payables 

Other payables and accruals

Total liabilities

Goodwill arising from acquisition 

Total purchase consideration
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14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

 

2013

$

Consideration for 100% of MOME

Cash paid

Deferred cash settlement 

Less: Deferred cash settlement  

business combination had taken place at the beginning of the year, the revenue from continuing operations would have been 

15. QUOTED EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

$ $ $ $

 

the terms and conditions of the loans and borrowings, the Group is prohibited from disposing these investments or subjecting it to further 
charges without furnishing a replacement security of similar value.
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16. UNQUOTED EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Group and Company

2013 2012

$ $

Impairment loss

– –

17. INVENTORIES

Group

2013 2012

$ $

(Restated)

Balance sheet:

Finished goods (at cost or net realisable value)

Statement of comprehensive income:

Inventories recognised as an expense in cost of sales

Inclusive of the following charge:

  - Inventories written-down

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Group

2013 2012

$ $

Trade receivables

 

which represent their fair values on initial recognition.
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

settled via letters of credit issued by reputable banks in countries where the customers are based. 

Group

2013 2012

$ $

United States Dollar

Chinese Renminbi –

Malaysian Ringgit 

impaired. These receivables are unsecured and the analysis of their ageing at the balance sheet date is as follows: 

Group

2013 2012

$ $

Trade receivables past due but not impaired:
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

 The Group’s trade receivables that are impaired at the balance sheet date and the movement of the allowance accounts used to record 
the impairment are as follows:

Group

Collectively impaired Individually impaired

2013 2012 2013 2012

$ $ $ $

Trade receivables – nominal amounts – –

– –

– – – –

Movement in allowance accounts:

– –

Charge for the year – – – –

– –

19. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

$ $ $ $

Deposits

– –

– –

Other receivables

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable within the next twelve months.
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31 DECEMBER 2013

20. GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACTS WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Group

2013 2012

$ $

Contract costs incurred to date 

Gross amount due from customers for contracts work-in-progress

Gross amount due to customers for contracts work-in-progress

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

$ $ $ $

Cash and bank balances

Group

2013 2012

$ $

United States Dollar

Chinese Renminbi

Malaysian Ringgit

Euro

Indonesian Rupiah
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31 DECEMBER 2013

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

period:

Group

2013 2012

$ $

Cash and bank balances

22. TRADE PAYABLES

Group

2013 2012

$ $

United States Dollar

Euro 

Chinese Renminbi

Malaysia Ringgit –
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31 DECEMBER 2013

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

$ $ $ $

Deferred revenue – –

Customers’ deposits – –

– –

Other payables

Rental deposits received

24. DEFERRED RENTAL

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

$ $ $ $

–

– – –

Disposal of subsidiary – – –

–

Disposal of subsidiary – – –

Current

– –
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24. DEFERRED RENTAL (CONTINUED)

 

25 DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES (NON-TRADE) 

 Except as disclosed below, these balances are unsecured, interest-free, are repayable on demand and are expected to be settled in cash.

per annum.

26. FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Group

Minimum
lease

payments Interest

Present
value of

payments

$ $ $

2013

2012
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31 DECEMBER 2013

27. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

(a) 

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

$ $ $ $

Current liabilities

Short-term loans:

– –

   -  Loan B – – –

– –

Current portion of long-term loans:

   -  Loan C – –

   -  Loan D – –

–

Total current liabilities –

Non-current liabilities

Long-term loans:

   -  Loan D – –

   -  Loan D – –

Total non-current liabilities – –

the year.
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27. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(b) 

28. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES

(a) 

Group and Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

No. of shares No. of shares $ $

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

Issue of new shares:

- Issuance of shares pursuant of right issue – –

- Issuance of shares pursuant to warrants exercised  – –

- Share issuance expense – – –

- Issuance of share pursuant to private placement – –

 The holders of ordinary shares (except for treasury shares) are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. 

date of issue. 

 The Company has employee share option plans under which options to subscribe for the Company’s ordinary shares have been 
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28. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES (CONTINUED)

(b) 

Group and Company

2013
No. of shares

2012
No. of shares

2013
$

2012
$

– –

 Treasury shares relate to ordinary shares of the Company that is held by the Company.

29.  OTHER RESERVES

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

$ $ $ $

Foreign currency translation reserve (a) – –

Fair value adjustment reserve (b)

Share-based payment reserve (c)

(a) 

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

$ $ $ $

– –

– –

– –
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29.  OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) 

derecognised or impaired.

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

$ $ $ $

- Fair value gain

– –

(c) S

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

$ $ $ $

Employee share-based payment

– –

30. DIVIDENDS

Group and Company

2013 2012

$ $

Dividends on ordinary shares
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

(a) 

parties on terms agreed between the parties, were as follows:

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

$ $ $ $

Income

Management service income from subsidiaries – –

Dividend from subsidiaries – –

  Director is also a Director and a Shareholder

Expenses

– –

Services provided by subsidiary – –

Interest on loan from a subsidiary – –

(b) 

Group

2013 2012

$ $

Total compensation paid to key management personnel

Comprise amounts paid to:

-  Directors of the Company

-  Other key management personnel

 The remuneration of key management personnel is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance 
of individuals and market trends.
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) 

 

32. COMMITMENTS

(a) 

Group 

2013 2012

$ $

–

(b) 

property to third parties.
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32. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) 

Group 

2013 2012

$ $

- Later than 5 years

(c) 

 The Group has entered into commercial leases on an industrial property. These non-cancellable leases have a remaining lease term 

Group 

2013 2012

$ $

–

33. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(a) 

 The Group categorises fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that is dependent on the valuation inputs as follows:

 
 at the measurement date,

 
 directly, and
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33. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) 

Group

2013

Quoted prices in 
active markets 

for identical 
instruments

observable inputs 
other than quoted 

prices
unobservable 

inputs Total

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Recurring fair value measurements

Assets

Financial assets:

– –

(c) 

reasonable approximation of fair values are as follows:

Group

2013 2012

Carrying
amount Fair value

Carrying
amount Fair value

$ $ $ $

Financial assets

– – – –

Financial liabilities

 

fully impaired in the prior year. 

 

lending rates for similar types of lending, borrowing or leasing arrangements at the end of the reporting period. 



95

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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34. CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

$ $ $ $

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables – –

Other receivables and deposits

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade payables – –

Bills payable – – –

Other payables and accruals

Finance lease obligations – –

Term loans –

Due to subsidiaries (non-trade) – –

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.

(a)  

exclusively with high credit rating counterparties. 
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)  

 The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. 
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade 

 Excessive risk concentration

 Concentration arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical 

economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the group’s performance to developments 

hedging is used within the Group to manage risk concentrations at both the relationship and industry levels. The Group does not 
apply hedge accounting.

 Exposure to credit risk 

 Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

 Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good payment record with the 

 Financial assets that are either past due or impaired 
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)  

 

2013 2012

$ % of total $ % of total

Group

By country:

Indonesia

Malaysia

Singapore 

Vietnam

Others

By industry sectors:

Distribution – –

(b) 

from their loans and borrowings.

 Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk

analysis is based on the currently observable market environment, showing a lower volatility as in prior years.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)  

through the use of stand-by credit facilities. 

 

sheet date based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

2013 2012

1 year 
or less

1 to 5 
years

After 5 
years Total

1 year 
or less

1 to 5 
years

After 5 
years Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Group

Financial assets:

– – – –

Trade receivables – – – –

Other receivables and deposits – – – –

– – – –

– –

Financial liabilities:

Trade payables – – – –

Bills payable – – – – – –

Other payables and accruals – – – –

Finance lease obligations – –

Term loans
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) 

2013 2012

1 year or 
less

1 to 5 
years

After 5 
years Total

1 year or 
less

1 to 5 
years

After 5 
years Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Company

Financial assets:

– – – –

Other receivables and deposits – – – –

– – – –

– –

Financial liabilities:

Other payables – – – –

Term loans – – – – – –

Due to subsidiaries (non-trade) – – – –

– – – –

– –

(d) 

 The Group had transactional currency exposures arising from purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the 

respective functional currencies of the Group entities. The Group’s trade receivable and trade payable balances at the end of the 
reporting period have similar exposures.

 
 The Group is also exposed to currency translation risk arising from its net investments in foreign operations, including Malaysia, the 

as currency positions in Malaysian Ringgit, RMB and Indonesian Rupiah are considered to be long-term in nature.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) 

 Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk

(against SGD), with all other variables held constant.

Group

2013 2012

of tax  of tax  

$ $

(e) 

approved by the Board of Directors.
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36. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

 The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in 
order to support its business and maximise Shareholder value. 

 The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.  To maintain or adjust 
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to Shareholders, return capital to Shareholders or issue new shares.  

 The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group’s policy is to keep the 

the Company including fair value adjustment reserve.

Group 

2013 2012

$ $

Total capital

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio
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37. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

 For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their products and services, and has three operating 

 Except as indicated above, no operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.

 Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation 

 Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.



103

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2013
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37. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consolidation. 

B

C

D The following items are deducted from segment assets to arrive at total assets reported in the consolidated balance sheet: 

2013 2012

$ $

 Inter-segment assets

E
sheet:

 Deferred tax liabilities

 Income tax payable

 Loans and borrowings

 Inter-segment liabilities

 Geographical information

 Revenue and non-current assets information based on the geographical location of customers and assets respectively are as follows: 

Revenues Non-current assets

2013 2012 2013 2012

$ $ $ $

– –

Europe – –

Indonesia

Malaysia

Middle East – –

Singapore

Vietnam – –

Others – –
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37. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

 Geographical information (continued)

consolidated balance sheet.

 Information about major customer

38. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

became an associate of the Group.

Booms became an associate of the Group.

39. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SHAREHOLDING STATISTICS
AS AT 14 MARCH 2014

Class of shares -  Ordinary shares 
Voting rights -  On a show of hands, one vote for each member
 -  On a poll : one vote for each ordinary share

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS 

Range of Shareholdings
No. of 

Shareholders % No. of Shares %

0.00 

complied with.

TOP 20 SHAREHOLDERS

S/No. Name of Shareholder
No. of Shares 

Held %*

Tan Boy Tee

5 Ong Choo Guan

Terry Tan Soon Lee

Chiang Tin Tiah

Xue Chunxia                   

5,500,000

Sim Mong Keang

 

issued shares excluding treasury shares).
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SHAREHOLDING STATISTICS
AS AT 14 MARCH 2014

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 14 MARCH 2014

Name 

Number of 
shares registered 

in the name 
of Substantial 
Shareholders 

Number of 
shares in which 
the Substantial 
Shareholder is 

deemed to have 
an interest Total %

 - 

Johansson Bo Robert   -

-

Tan Boy Tee -  
                         
                                                     
Notes:

 Nominees                Shares
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WARRANTHOLDING STATISTICS
AS AT 14 MARCH 2014

WARRANTHOLDING STATISTICS AS AT 14 MARCH 2014

Range of Warrantholdings
No. of 

Warrantholders % No. of Warrants %

TOP 20 WARRANTHOLDERS

S/No. Name of Warrantholder
No. of Warrants 

Held %

Ong Choo Guan

5

Chiang Tin Tiah

Lin Meifeng                   

Tay Gek Choo                  
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AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

  

  
      

     

  (Resolution 5)
   

  
AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

Limited, approval be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company at any time to such persons and upon such terms and 

subscribe for or purchase shares (collectively, “Instruments”) including but not limited to the creation and issue of warrants, 

(iii) issue additional Instruments arising from adjustments made to the number of Instruments previously issued in the event of 

Instrument made or granted by the Directors while the authority was in force,
 provided always that: 
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(i)  the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this resolution (including shares to be issued in pursuance of 

excluding treasury shares of the Company, of which the aggregate number of shares (including shares to be issued in 
pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this resolution) to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to 

Company, and for the purpose of this resolution, the issued share capital shall be the Company’s total number of issued 
shares excluding treasury shares at the time this resolution is passed, after adjusting for:

(a) new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of convertible securities, or

(b) new shares  arising  from exercising share options or vesting of share awards outstanding or subsisting at the time 

the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, and

(ii) such authority shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company at a general meeting, continue in force until the conclusion 

                                                                  

Share Option Scheme (the “VOM Scheme VLTIP”).

 “That:

(b)  approval be and is hereby given to the Directors to exercise full powers of the Company to allot and issue from time to time such 

  

            of the share award to be granted

 
  the share award
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            of the share award to be granted

 
  the share award

 That:

of the total number of issued Shares of the Company at such price(s) as may be determined by the Directors or a committee of 

(i)  an on-market purchase (“Market Purchase”), transacted on the SGX-ST through the ready market, and which may be 

time being be applicable, be and is hereby authorised and approved generally and unconditionally (the “Share Buyback 
Mandate

Share Buyback Mandate may be made, at any time and from time to time during the period commencing from the date of the 
passing of this Resolution and expiring on the earlier of:

(iii)  the date on which the authority conferred by the Share Buyback Mandate is revoked or varied by the Shareholders in a 
general meeting, 

whichever is the earliest.
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(c)  in this Resolution:

 “Maximum Price
duties, commission, applicable goods and services tax and other related expenses) which shall not exceed:

 where:

 “Average Closing Price

 “

Company Secretary
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percent of the issued share capital of the Company of which the total number of shares and convertible securities issued other than on a 
pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders shall not exceed 50 percent of the issued share capital of the Company at the time the resolution 
is passed, for such purposes as they consider would be in the interests of the Company. This authority will, unless revoked or varied at a 

percent of the Company’s issued shares, excluding treasury shares in the capital of the Company from time to time.

NOTICE OF BOOK CLOSURE

preparation of dividend warrants.

entitled to the proposed dividend.

 
This document has been prepared by the Company and its contents have been reviewed by the Company’s Sponsor, CIMB Bank Berhad, 
Singapore branch (“Sponsor”), for compliance with the relevant rules of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST”), 

 
 
The document has not been examined or approved by the SGX-ST. The Sponsor and the SGX-ST assume no responsibility for the contents of this 
document including the correctness of any of the statements or opinions made or reports contained in this document. 
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THIS APPENDIX IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION. 

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take, you should consult your stockbroker, bank manager, accountant, solicitor or 
other professional adviser immediately.

Shareholders Company

VIKING OFFSHORE AND MARINE LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

APPENDIX TO THE ANNUAL REPORT 2013

in relation to

(1) THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF THE SHARE BUYBACK MANDATE 

(2) THE PROPOSED GRANT OF AWARDS TO MR. ANDY LIM, A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER, AND MR. DANIEL LIN WEI, AN 
ASSOCIATE OF A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER, UNDER THE VIKING LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

Singapore branch (the “Sponsor”), for compliance with the relevant rules of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST”), 

APPENDIX
11 APRIL 2014



115

CLAUSES  PAGE NO.

 

 

 

  

 DIRECTORS

5. DIRECTORS

 

 DIRECTORS

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS



116

DEFINITIONS

“ACRA” :

“AGM” :

“Annual Report 2013” :

“Appendix” :

“associate” :
(being an individual) means:

(iii) any Company in which he and his immediate family together (directly or indirectly) have an 

(b) in relation to a Substantial Shareholder or a Controlling Shareholder (being a Company) means 
any other Company which is its subsidiary or holding Company or is a subsidiary of such holding 

“associated Company” :
held by the Company or the Group

“Average Closing Price” :

“Award” :

“Award Date” :

“Board” : The Board of Directors of the Company for the time being

“Catalist” : The sponsor-supervised listing platform of the SGX-ST

“Catalist Rules” :

“CDP” :

“Companies Act” :

“Company” :
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DEFINITIONS

“Controlling Shareholder” :
treasury shares) (subject to the SGX-ST determining that such a person is not a Controlling Shareholder) or 
a person who in fact exercises control over the Company

“Director(s)” : The Director(s) of the Company

“EGM” : Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company

“EPS” : Earnings per Share

“FRS” : Singapore Financial Reporting Standard

“FY” :

“Grant of Awards” :

“Group” : The Company, its subsidiaries and associated companies

“Group Employee” :
control, including any Group Executive Director 

“Group Executive Director” :
control, who performs an executive function

“Group Non-Executive Director” :
control, other than a Group Executive Director, and including an Independent Director

“Independent Director” :

“Latest Practicable Date” :

“Market Day” :

“Market Purchase” :

“Maximum Price” :

“NTA” :

“ ” :

“Performance Condition” :

“Performance Period” :
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DEFINITIONS

“Plan Committee” : The committee, comprising Directors, duly authorised and appointed to administer the  pursuant to 
the rules of the 

“Plan Participant” :  in accordance with the rules 
thereof

“Securities Account” :

“SGX-ST” : Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

“Share Buyback Mandate” :

“Shareholders” :

Shares

“Shares” : Ordinary shares in the capital of the Company

“Sponsor” : CIMB Bank Berhad, Singapore Branch

“Substantial Shareholder” :

“Take-over Code” :

“VLTIP” :

“$” and “cents” : Dollars and cents respectively of the currency of Singapore

“%” or “per cent” :

include the feminine and neuter gender and vice versa. References to persons shall, where applicable, include corporations.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Directors:

Mr Lien Kait Long (Independent Director)

      

(1) THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF THE SHARE BUYBACK MANDATE 

(2) THE PROPOSED GRANT OF AWARDS TO MR. ANDY LIM, A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER, AND MR. DANIEL LIN WEI, AN 
ASSOCIATE OF A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER, UNDER THE VLTIP

1. INTRODUCTION

Grant of 
Awards”), 

2. THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF THE SHARE BUYBACK MANDATE

2.1. Rationale

April 
2013 AGM

time during the period when the Share Buyback Mandate is in force.
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(a) in managing the business of the Group, the Management team strives to increase Shareholders’ value by improving, inter alia, the 

Limited Share Option Scheme (the “VOM Scheme
(the “VLTIP
held as treasury shares to satisfy the Company’s obligation to furnish VOM Shares to participants under the VOM Scheme and the 

structure and its dividend policy.

of Shares pursuant to the Share Buyback Mandate will be made only as and when the Directors consider it to be in the best interests of 

2.2 Authority and limits

summarised below:

(a) Maximum number of Shares



121

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

(b) Duration of authority

(iii) the date on which the authority conferred by the Share Buyback Mandate is revoked or varied by the Shareholders in a 
general meeting,

 whichever is the earliest. 

(c) 

(i) an on-market purchase (“Market Purchase”), transacted on the SGX-ST through the ready market, and which may be 

 The Directors may impose such terms and conditions which are not inconsistent with the Share Buyback Mandate, the Companies 
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(vii) whether the Shares purchased by the issuer will be cancelled or kept as treasury shares.

(d) 

 The purchase price (excluding brokerage, stamp duties, commission, applicable goods and services tax and other related 
expenses) to be paid for a Share will be determined by the Directors or a committee of Directors that may be constituted 

exceed: 

(the “Maximum Price
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 “Average Closing Price

 “

2.3 Status of purchased or acquired Shares

2.4 Treasury Shares

(a) Maximum holdings

of the Company.

(b) Voting and other rights

 The Company cannot exercise any right in respect of treasury shares. In particular, the Company cannot exercise any right to attend 

treasury shares shall be treated as having no voting rights.

 In addition, no dividend may be paid and no other distribution of the Company’s assets may be made to the Company in respect 

subdivision or consolidation of any treasury share into treasury shares of a smaller amount is allowed so long as the total value of 
the treasury shares after the subdivision or consolidation is the same as before.

(c) Disposal and cancellation
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(v) sell, transfer or otherwise use the treasury shares for such other purposes as may be prescribed by the Minister for Finance.

2.5 Reporting requirements

under the Rules of Catalist. The Company shall make arrangements with its stockbrokers to ensure that they provide to the Company, in 
a timely fashion, the necessary information which will enable the Company to make the relevant announcement.

Rules, which provides that an issuer must make an immediate announcement thereof, stating the following:

(v)  percentage of the number of treasury shares against the total number of Shares outstanding in a class that is listed before and after 

(vi)  value of the treasury shares if they are used for a sale or transfer, or cancelled.

2.6 Sources of funds 
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Mandate, the Directors will principally consider the availability of internal resources. In addition, the Directors will also consider the availability 

 The Company’s total issued share capital will be diminished by the total number of the Shares purchased by the Company and which are 

of cash dividends by the Company will not be reduced.

prevailing market conditions. 

 For illustrative purposes only

below:

(excluding brokerage, stamp duties, commission, applicable goods and services tax and other related expenses) is approximately 
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(excluding brokerage, stamp duties, commission, applicable goods and services tax and other related expenses) is approximately 

 For illustrative purposes only, and based on the assumptions set out in sub-paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) above and assuming that (i) the 

Shares by the Company pursuant to the Share Buyback Mandate:

Buyback Mandate are as follows:
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Group Company

Before 
Share 

Purchase

After Share 
Purchase 
assuming 

Market 
Purchase

After Share 
Purchase 
assuming 

Purchase
Before Share 

Purchase

After Share 
Purchase 
assuming 

Market 
Purchase

After Share 
Purchase 
assuming 

Purchase

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

As at 31 December 2013

Share capital

Capital and other reserves

Retained earnings

Treasury shares

Shareholders’ funds

Current assets

Current liabilities

 (net of treasury shares)

Financial ratios

 (cents per share)

Current ratio (times) 0.5 

Earnings per share 
 (cents per share) – – –
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(2) Purchases made entirely out of capital and held as treasury shares 

Group Company

Before Share 
Purchase

After Share 
Purchase 
assuming 

Market 
Purchase

After Share 
Purchase 
assuming 

Purchase
Before Share 

Purchase

After Share 
Purchase 
assuming 

Market 
Purchase

After Share 
Purchase 
assuming 

Purchase

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

As at 31 December 2013

Share capital

Capital and other reserves

Retained earnings

Treasury shares

Shareholders’ funds

Current assets

Current liabilities

 (net of treasury shares)

Financial ratios

 (cents per share)

Current ratio (times) 0.5 

Earnings per share 
 (cents per share) – – –
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Group Company

Before Share 
Purchase

After Share 
Purchase 
assuming 

Market 
Purchase

After Share 
Purchase 
assuming 

Purchase
Before Share 

Purchase

After Share 
Purchase 
assuming 

Market 
Purchase

After Share 
Purchase 
assuming 

Purchase

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

As at 31 December 2013

Share capital

Capital and other reserves

Retained earnings

Treasury shares

Shareholders’ funds

Current assets

Current liabilities

 (net of treasury shares)

Financial ratios

 (cents per share)

Current ratio (times) 0.5 

Earnings per share 
 (cents per share) – – –
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(4) Purchases made entirely out of capital and cancelled 

Group Company

Before Share 
Purchase

After Share 
Purchase 
assuming 

Market 
Purchase

After Share 
Purchase 
assuming 

Purchase
Before Share 

Purchase

After Share 
Purchase 
assuming 

Market 
Purchase

After Share 
Purchase 
assuming 

Purchase

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

As at 31 December 2013

Share capital

Capital and other reserves

Retained earnings

Treasury shares

Shareholders’ funds

Current assets

Current liabilities

 (net of treasury shares)

Financial ratios

 (cents per share)

Current ratio (times) 0.5 

Earnings per share 
 (cents per share) – – –
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purely for illustrative purposes and based only on the abovementioned 

cancel all or part of the Shares repurchased or hold all or part of the Shares repurchased in treasury.

2.8 Catalist Rules 

Company will not purchase any Shares pursuant to the Share Buyback Mandate after a price-sensitive development has occurred or has 

announced. In particular, in line with the best practices guide on securities dealing issued by the SGX-ST, the Company will not purchase 

the associates of such persons. 

 Based on the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings and the Register of Substantial Shareholders maintained by the Company as at the 

Company and no change to the Shares held by the Directors and the Substantial Shareholders, the number of Shares in the hands of the 

the Company, the SGX-ST may suspend trading of the Shares. 
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2.9 Take-over Code implications

(a) 

Take-over Code.

(b)  

 Under the Take-over Code, persons acting in concert comprise individuals or companies who, pursuant to an agreement or 

 Unless the contrary is established, the Take-over Code presumes, inter alia, the following individuals and companies to be persons 
acting in concert:

(i) a Company with its parent Company, subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries, any associated companies of the foregoing 
companies, any Company whose associated companies include any of the foregoing companies, and any person who has 

(ii) a Company with any of its Directors, together with their close relatives, related trusts and any companies controlled by any 

(iv) a person with any investment Company, unit trust or other fund whose investment such person manages on a discretionary 

and the persons controlling, controlled by or under the same control as the adviser and all the funds which the adviser 
manages on a discretionary basis, where the shareholdings of the adviser and any of those funds in the client total ten per 

(vi) Directors of a Company, together with their close relatives, related trusts and companies controlled by any of them, which 

(viii) an individual, his close relatives, his related trusts, any person who is accustomed to act according to his instructions, 
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of a Company will be regarded as the test of associated Company status.

 The circumstances under which Shareholders, including Directors and persons acting in concert with them respectively, will incur 

(c) 

or 

 In calculating the percentages of voting rights of such Directors and persons acting in concert with them, treasury shares shall be 
excluded.

 Such Shareholder need not abstain from voting in respect of the resolution authorising the Share Buyback Mandate. 

Code as a result of any purchase or acquisition of Shares by the Company should consult the Securities Industy Council 
and/or their professional advisers at the earliest opportunity.

2.10 Taxation

 Shareholders who are in doubt as to their respective tax positions or any tax implications arising from the Share Buyback Mandate or who 
may be subject to tax in a jurisdiction other than Singapore should consult their own professional advisers.
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2.11 Previous Share buybacks

Number of 
Shares purchased Highest price paid Lowest price paid

Total consideration paid 
(excluding transaction costs)

3. THE PROPOSED GRANT OF AWARDS TO MR. ANDY LIM AND MR. DANIEL LIN WEI UNDER THE VLTIP

3.1 Introduction

3.2 Summary of the rules of the VLTIP

3.3 Grant of an Award to Mr. Andy Lim, a Controlling Shareholder, under the VLTIP

(a) :

(b)
granted

:

(c) :

operations. 
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future performance of the Group. The grant will also serve as a means to motivate him to continue to achieve and maintain a high level of 
performance which is vital to the success of the Group.

3.5 Grant of an Award to Mr. Daniel Lin Wei, an associate of a Controlling Shareholder, under the VLTIP

(a) :

(b)
granted

:

(c) :

management and driving the growth of the Group. Given his legal and fund raising background, the Directors believe his skill set adds 
to the diversity and expertise of the Board in the areas of his experience, and provides management oversight in business development, 
corporate actions, and any other corporate initiatives where his experience and skills will be relevant to the Company and its subsidiaries. 

chartering services.

motivate him to continue to contribute to the long-term growth and development of the Group. 

3.7 Costs arising from the grant of Awards

in the following paragraphs. 

the following paragraph), the number of Shares vested at the vesting date, with a corresponding credit to reserve account. Before the end 

subject to revision, and the impact of the revised estimate will be recognised in the income statement with a corresponding adjustment to 

in the fair value of the Shares since the grant date.
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performance target is a market condition, the probability of the performance target being met is taken into account in estimating the fair 

market condition is not met. On the other hand, if the performance target is not a market condition, the probability of the target being met 

3.8 Awards granted under the VLTIP

4. DIRECTORS’ AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS 

Directors’ interests in Shares and Substantial Shareholders’ interests in Shares, respectively, are as follows: 

Directors

Number of Shares

Direct 
Interest %(1)

Deemed 
Interest %(1)

Ong Choo Guan 

- - - -

- -

Lien Kait Long - -

- -

Substantial Shareholders  
(other than Directors)

Number of Shares

Direct 
Interest %(1)

Deemed 
Interest %(1)

Tan Boy Tee - -

- -

Johansson Bo Robert - -

- -



137

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

 Notes:

Nominees Shares

shareholding interest.

5. DIRECTORS’ RECOMMENDATIONS

 The Directors are of the opinion that the proposed Share Buyback Mandate is in the best interests of the Company, and accordingly 
recommend that Shareholders vote in favour of the ordinary resolution relating to the proposed Share Buyback Mandate, at the forthcoming 

6. ABSTENTION FROM VOTING

 The Directors shall also decline to accept any appointment as proxies or nominees, as the case may be, for any Shareholder, as the case 

Form as to how he or she wishes his or her votes to be cast in respect of the said ordinary resolutions.

and shall also decline to accept any appointment as proxy for any Shareholder to vote in respect of the said ordinary resolutions unless the 

ordinary resolutions.
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7. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

source, the sole responsibility of the Directors has been to ensure that such information has been accurately and correctly extracted from 

8. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mr Ong Choo Guan
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Eligibility

persons are not undischarged bankrupts and have not entered into compositions with their respective creditors at the relevant time, and 

implemented or to be implemented by the Company or any other Company within the Group.

years of service and potential for future development and contribution to the success of the Group.

The corporate objectives shall cover market competitiveness, business growth and productivity growth. The performance targets could be 

the Group, achievement of past performance targets, value-add to the Group’s performance and development and overall enhancement 
to Shareholder value, amongst others, will be taken into account.

is made.

specifying, inter alia, the following:
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above stipulated period with the approval of the Shareholders by ordinary resolution in general meeting and of any relevant authorities 

continue to remain valid.

such as changes in accounting methods, taxes and extraordinary events, and further, the right to amend the performance targets if the 
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rank in full for all entitlements, including dividends or other distributions declared or recommended in respect of the then existing Shares, 

Shares then in issue.

(5) 

to or held by him or his associate.

(ii)  the court sanctions a compromise or arrangement proposed for the purposes of, or in connection with, a scheme for the 

(iii)  the Shareholders pass a resolution for a members’ solvent voluntary winding-up (other than for amalgamation or reconstruction),
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VIKING OFFSHORE AND MARINE LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

PROXY FORM

 

Name Address
NRIC/ 

Passport No.
Proportion of shareholdings 

to be represented by proxy (%)

and at any adjournment thereof.

No. Ordinary Resolutions For Against

  5.

their remuneration.

To authorise Directors to allot and issue shares. 

To approve the proposed renewal of the Share Buyback Mandate. 

Total Number of Shares Held

IMPORTANT

IMPORTANT

-

used or purported to be used by them.



Notes:-

attend and vote in his stead. Such proxy need not be a member of the Company.

the whole) to be represented by each proxy.

instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it must be executed under its common seal or under the hand of its 

5. The instrument appointing proxy or proxies, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or 

shares registered in his name in the Register of Members of the Company, he should insert the number of shares. If the member has shares 
entered against his name in the Depository Register and shares registered in his name in the Register of Members of the Company, he 
should insert the aggregate number of shares. If no number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to relate to all the shares held by 
the member of the Company.

a proxy or proxies. In addition, in the case of members of the Company whose shares are entered against their names in the Depository 
Register, the Company may reject any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if such members are not shown to have shares 

VIKING OFFSHORE AND MARINE LIMITED

The Share Registrar

c/o M & C Services Private Limited 
112 Robinson Road

#05-01
Singapore 068902
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